
 

From: Democratic Services Unit – any further information may be obtained from the reporting 
officer or from Benjamin Hopkins, Senior Democratic Services Officer, to whom any apologies for 
absence should be notified. 
 

SPEAKERS PANEL (PLANNING) 
 
Day: Wednesday 
Date: 19 April 2023 
Time: 10.00 am 
Place: Guardsman Tony Downes House, Manchester Road, 

Droylsden, M43 6SF 
 
Item 
No. 

AGENDA Page 
No  

1.   APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE   

 To receive any apologies for absence from Members of the Panel.   
2.   DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST   

 To receive any declarations of interest from Members of the Panel.   
3.   MINUTES  1 - 4 

 The Minutes of the meeting of the Speakers Panel (Planning) held on 15 
March 2023, having been circulated, to be signed by the Chair as a correct 
record. 

 

 
4.   PLANNING APPLICATIONS   

 To consider the schedule of applications:   
a)   22/00818/FUL - LAND AT THE END OF FERN LODGE DRIVE, ASHTON-

UNDER-LYNE  
5 - 40 

 
b)   22/01208/FUL - TAMESIDE COLLEGE OF TECHNOLOGY, BEAUFORT 

ROAD, ASHTON-UNDER-LYNE  
41 - 72 

 
5.   URGENT ITEMS   

 To consider any other items, which the Chair is of the opinion should be 
considered as a matter of urgency. 

 

 
6.   DATE OF NEXT MEETING   

 To note the next meeting of the Speakers Panel (Planning) will take place on 
31 May 2023. 

 

 

Public Document Pack



This page is intentionally left blank



SPEAKERS PANEL 
(PLANNING) 

 
15 March 2023 

Commenced: 10:00am                                                            Terminated: 10:50am 

Present: Councillor McNally (Chair) 
 Councillors Affleck, Bowerman, Dickinson, Owen, Mills, Pearce, 

Quinn and Ricci 
Apologies: Councillor Boyle 
 
 
57. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 
 
There were no declarations of interest from Members of the Panel. 
 
 
58. MINUTES 
 
The minutes of the proceedings of the meeting held on 22 February 2023, having been circulated, 
were approved and signed by the Chair as a correct record. 
 
 
59. HIGHWAYS ACT 1980 – APPLICATION TO STOP UP DEFINITIVE FOOTPATH 

STALYBRIDGE 48 
 
Consideration was given to a report of the Assistant Director, Operations and Neighbourhoods 
following a request from a local resident for the Council to make a Public Path Order under Section 
118 of the Highways Act 1980 (the Act) to stop up the full length of Footpath Stalybridge 48. 
 
Members were informed that the stopping up of the footpath was expedient on the grounds that it 
was not needed for public use.  It was explained that the footpath was subject to historical obstruction 
caused by the construction of numerous houses. The reporting officer estimated that Footpath 
Stalybridge 48 had not been accessible on its definitive alignment for a period of approximately 50 
years since the housing development took place.  
 
Given the obstruction posed by the housing, it was suggested that the adopted pavements along the 
streets provided high quality alternative routes to replace the journeys made using the public 
footpath. 
 
Panel was advised that Footpath Stalybridge 48 started at the junction of Lord Street and Laburnum 
Avenue then ran along the footway of Laburnum Avenue and Hawthorn Drive in Stalybridge.  Part 
way along Hawthorn Drive, the footpath left the footway and turned to the north east at which point 
it passed through the gardens and houses on both Hawthorn Drive and Maple Avenue. Ultimately, 
the footpath re-joined the footway of Maple Avenue before terminating at the junction of Maple 
Avenue and Quarry Rise.  The footpath ran for a distance of 362 metres. 
 
A consultation was carried out with the affected residents and the public rights of way organisations 
that operated within the borough.  In response, five of the eighteen residents who were contacted 
outlined their support for the stopping up of the footpath.  There was no opposition received from 
these residents. Concerning the rights of way organisations operating in the borough, the five 
responses received raised no objections to the proposal.  Of the ward councillors, Councillor 
Sweeton, expressed strong support for the stopping up of the footpath. 
 

Page 1

Agenda Item 3



Officers believed that it was expedient that Footpath Stalybridge 48 should be stopped up as it was 
apparent that the path had been inaccessible for approximately 50 years without any apparent 
objection. It was therefore: 
 
RESOLVED 
THAT AUTHORITY BE GIVEN TO MAKE THE REQUISITE ORDERS ON THE GROUNDS THAT 
THE STOPPING UP OF THE FOOTPATH IS EXPEDIENT ON THE GROUNDS THAT IT IS NOT 
NEEDED FOR PUBLIC USE. 
 
 
60. PLANNING APPLICATIONS 
 
The Panel gave consideration to the schedule of applications submitted and it was:- 
 
RESOLVED  
That the applications for planning permission be determined as detailed below:- 
 

Name and Application No: 21/00217/OUT 
G&P Properties (NW) Holdings Ltd 

Proposed Development: Construction of 3no. new storage and distribution (Use Class 
B8) units on former gas work sites, to include new access road 
and associated car parking.  
Land to the east of Oldham Street, Denton, M34 3RB 

Decision: That planning permission be granted, subject to the conditions 
as detailed within the submitted report.  

 

Name and Application No: 22/01132/FUL 
Ross Dewsnap  

Proposed Development: Demolition of existing garage and construction of 3no. new 
dwellings and 1no. new double garage.  
80 Currier Lane, Ashton-under-Lyne, OL6 6TB 

Speaker(s)/Late 
Representations: 

Cllr Fairfoull and Andrew Jameson addressed the Panel 
objecting to the application.  
Ross Dewsnap, the applicant, addressed the Panel in relation 
to the application. 

Decision: Officer recommendation was to approve, subject to the outlined 
conditions. 
Members considered the proposed development would 
comprise of overdevelopment of the site contrary to policies: 
• C1: Townscape and Urban Form; 
• H10: Detailed Design of Housing Development of the 

adopted Tameside Unitary Development Plan and; 
• Policy RD3: Efficient Use of Land of the Tameside 

Residential Design SPD and the National Planning Policy 
Framework 

And therefore resolved to refuse the application.  

Page 2



 

Name and Application No: 22/01204/FUL 
Sonia Walker 

Proposed Development: Proposed glazed roof canopy to rear of property. 
46 Fir Tree Crescent, Dukinfield, SK16 5EH  

Speaker(s)/Late 
Representations: 

Barbara Boardwell addressed the Panel objecting to the 
application.  
Sonia Walker, the applicant, addressed the Panel in relation to 
the application.  

Decision: That planning permission be granted, subject to the conditions 
as detailed within the submitted report. 

 
 
61. APPEAL DECISIONS 

 

Application 
Reference/Address of 
Property 

Description Appeal/Cost Decision 

APP/G4240/W/22/3307835 
St Lawrence Road, Denton, 
M34 6DF 

Proposed 5G telecoms 
installation: H3G Phase 8 20m 
high street pole, c/w wrap-
around cabinet and three 
further additional equipment 
cabinets. 

Appeal dismissed. 

 
 
62. URGENT ITEMS 
 
The Chair advised that there were no urgent items of business for consideration by the Panel. 
 
 
63. DATE OF NEXT MEETING 
 
RESOLVED 
That the next meeting of the Panel would take place on 19 April 2023. 
 
 

CHAIR 
 

Page 3



This page is intentionally left blank



Application Number   22/00818/FUL 
 
Proposal   New residential development of 32 no units consisting of 18no 3 

bedroom houses and 14no 4 bedroom houses with associated car 
parking and landscaping. 

 
Site    Land at the end of Fern Lodge Drive, Ashton-under-Lyne 
 
Applicant     Wiggett Construction 
 
Recommendation   Grant planning permission subject to conditions and completion of a 

section 106 agreement. 
 
Reason for Report A Speakers Panel decision is required because the application is major 

development. 
 
Background Papers: The planning application documents are background papers to the 

report.  They are open to inspection in accordance with Section 100D 
of the Local Government Act 1972. 

 
 
1. SITE & SURROUNDINGS 

 
1.1 The application relates to an area of vacant land to the east of Fern Lodge Drive, a small stub 

road which connects to Queens Road to the west.  Hurst Cross is located to the north.  The 
site is rectangular in shape and covers an area of approximately 0.7 hectares, it is not 
publically accessible being enclosed behind a 2m high fence.  It borders a playing field to the 
north which is located at an elevated height; a private angling pond to the east; and properties 
fronting Freshwater Drive to the south.  An amenity area of public open space separates the 
site from Queens Road.  
 

1.2 Historically the site was within the Hurst / Stamford Mills complex, and until 1999 it still 
supported a reservoir as a legacy of the former cotton spinning operations.  The reservoir 
has been cleared but there remains evidence of concrete slabs and tarmacked access roads.  
The remainder of the site is scattered with self-set vegetation.  The land is marshy in 
character and is undulating with several areas of spoil.  
 

1.3 Queens Road/Hurst Cross supports numerous amenities including shops, health services, 
schools and employment uses.  Tameside General Hospital is also located a short distance 
to the south.  There are regular bus services which, amongst other areas, provide links to 
Ashton and Oldham.  The housing stock locally is varied.  That found to the east of the site 
has been built within the last 20 years and has taken place on former employment land. 

 
 
2. PROPOSAL 
 
2.1 The application seeks full planning permission for a residential development of 32 dwellings.  

The accommodation split would comprise of 20 x 3 bed and 12 x 4 bed properties, this would 
include 4 x 2 storey, 6 x 2.5 storey and 16 x 3 storey dwellings.  The size of the properties 
would range from 92 square metres (sqm) to 129 sqm. 

 
2.2 Amendments have been made during the assessment of the application, these have altered 

the layout and house types within the development to improve the appearance and 
relationship to existing dwellings.  The layout is also influenced in part by a water main which 
runs along a north/south axis of the site’s frontage. 

 

Page 5

Agenda Item 4a



2.3 The access would be taken from the head of Fern Lodge Drive.  All of the properties would 
have two off road parking spaces. 

 
2.4  The application is supported with the following documents:  

 
• Arboricultural Impact Assessment;  
• Biodiversity Impact Assessment; 
• Coal Mining Risk Assessment;  
• Crime Impact Statement; 
• Drainage Report; 
• Environmental Sustainability Statement;  
• Flood Risk Assessment;  
• Geo-Environmental Investigation; 
• Ground Remediation Report; 
• Planning Statement; 
• Transport Assessment; 
• Travel Plan; 
• Tree Survey. 

 
 
3. PLANNING HISTORY 
 
3.1 00/00091/FUL – Erection of 61no. dwellinghouses, fishing pond, 0.75ha area for B1 

Industrial/Commercial Use and new access from Queens Road – Approved on appeal  
18.01.2001. 

 
3.2 02/01386/FUL – Amendment to previously approved application ref.00/00091/FUL for 

erection of 61 houses, garages and associated works and provision of fishing pond – 
Approved 26.02.2003. 

 
 
4. PLANNING POLICY 
 

National Planning Policy Framework 
4.1 Paragraph 9 of the National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) states that planning 

decisions should play an active role in guiding development towards sustainable solutions, 
but in doing so should take local circumstances into account to reflect the character, needs 
and opportunities of each area. 

 
4.2 Paragraph 11 states that planning decisions should apply a presumption in favour of 

sustainable development.  This means approving development proposals that accord with an 
up-to-date development plan without delay (as per section 38(6) of the Planning and 
Compulsory Purchase Act 2004).  However, where the development plan is absent, silent or 
out of date, planning permission should be granted unless the application of policies in the 
NPPF that protects areas or assets of particular importance, provides a clear reason for 
refusing the development proposed; or any adverse impacts of doing so would significantly 
and demonstrably outweigh the benefits, when assessed against the policies in the NPPF 
taken as a whole. 
 

4.3 Paragraph 12 of the NPPF clarifies that the presumption in favour of sustainable development 
does not change the statutory status of the development plan as the starting point for decision 
making.  Where a planning application conflicts with an up-to-date development plan, 
permission should not normally be granted.  Local planning authorities may take decisions 
that depart from an up-to-date development plan, but only if material considerations in a 
particular case indicate that the plan should not be followed. 
 

Page 6



Development Plan 
4.4 The adopted development plan is the Tameside Unitary Development Plan (2004) and the 

Greater Manchester Joint Waste Development Plan Document (2012).  The site is 
unallocated bordering the Green Belt and SBI which are located immediately to the west.  

 
Tameside Unitary Development Plan (2004) 
 

4.5 Part 1 Policies 
• 1.3: Creating a Cleaner and Greener Environment; 
• 1.4: Providing More Choice and Quality of Homes; 
• 1.5: Following the Principles of Sustainable Development; 
• 1.6:  Securing Urban Regeneration;  
• 1:10: Protecting and Enhancing the Natural Environment; 
• 1:11: Conserving Built Heritage and Retaining Local Identity; 
• 1.12: Ensuring an Accessible, Safe and Healthy Environment. 

 
4.6 Part 2 Policies 

• H1: Housing Land Provision 
• H2 : Unallocated Sites 
• H4: Type, Size and Affordability of Dwellings 
• H5: Open Space Provision 
• H10: Detailed Design of Housing Developments 
• T1: Highway Improvement and Traffic Management 
• T7: Cycling 
• T10: Parking  
• C1: Townscape and Urban Form 
• N3: Nature Conservation Factors 
• N5: Trees within Development Sites 
• N7: Protected Species 
• MW11: Contaminated Land 
• MW12: Control of Pollution 
• U3: Water Services for Developments 
• U4: Flood Prevention 
• U5: Energy Efficiency 

 
Places for Everyone 

4.7 The Places for Everyone Joint Development Plan Document was published in August 2021.  
It was submitted to the Secretary of State in February 2022 and inspectors are appointed to 
carry out an independent examination.  It is a joint plan covering nine of the ten Greater 
Manchester districts, including Tameside, and is intended to provide the overarching 
framework to strategically manage growth across the boroughs. 
 

4.8 Paragraph 48 in the NPPF states that local planning authorities may give weight to relevant 
policies in emerging plans according to: the stage of preparation of the emerging plan (the 
more advanced its preparation, the greater weight may be given); the extent to which there 
are unresolved objections (the less significant, the greater the weight that may be given); and 
the degree of consistency of the relevant policies in the emerging plan to the NPPF (the 
closer the policies in the emerging plan to the policies in the NPPF, the greater the weight 
that may be given). 

 
4.9 Whilst Places for Everyone has been published and submitted, a number of representations 

have been received objecting to policies, and so in accordance with paragraph 48 of the 
NPPF, only very limited weight can be given to those policies at this time. 

 
Other Considerations 

Page 7



4.10 The application has been considered having regard to Article 1 of the First Protocol of the 
Human Rights Act 1998, which sets out a person’s rights to the peaceful enjoyment of 
property and Article 8 of the Convention of the same Act which sets out his/her rights in 
respect for private and family life and for the home.  Officers consider that the proposed 
development would not be contrary to the provisions of the above Articles in respect of the 
human rights of surrounding residents/occupiers. 

 
4.11 The application has been considered in accordance with the Tameside One Equality Scheme 

(2018-22), which seeks to prevent unlawful discrimination, promote equality of opportunity 
and good relations between people in a diverse community.  In this case the proposed 
development is not anticipated to have any potential impact from an equality perspective. 

 
 
5. PUBLICITY CARRIED OUT 
 
5.1 In accordance with the requirements of the Town and Country Planning (Development 

Management Procedure) (England) Order 2015 and the Council’s adopted Statement of 
Community Involvement, the application has been advertised as a major development by 
neighbour notification letter, display of a site notice; and advertisement in the local press. 

 
 
6. SUMMARY OF THIRD PARTY RESPONSES 
 
6.1 Six representations in objection to the development have been received, the reasons for 

which are summarised as follows:  
 
6.2 Land Use 

• The land has a covenant-in-perpetuity relating to its historic site as a graveyard, planning 
permission has previously been refused due to conflicts with this. 

• Oppose the construction of any buildings on land used for burial and especially where a 
covenant exists for its protection. 

• One of the only areas of green space in the locality 
 

6.3 Amenity 
• Loss of privacy from overlooking, 
• Noise and disturbance during construction. 
• Loss of light / overshadowing. 

   
6.4 Ecology 

• Impact upon wildlife habitat. 
• Loss of trees. 

 
6.5 Other 

• Lack of detail accompanying the application. 
• Site clearance works have commenced ahead of planning approval. 
• Overdevelopment of the site. 

 
 
7. RESPONSES FROM CONSULTEES 
 
7.1 Coal Authority – Confirmed that the site is within a high risk area.  The applicant has produced 

an appropriate up-to-date coal mining risk report.  No objections raised subject to the 
recommended condition relevant to further intrusive site investigation to determine the nature 
of any remediation strategy. 

 

Page 8



7.2 Contaminated Land – No objections subject to recommended conditions requiring further site 
investigations. 

 
7.3 Environment Health Officer – No objections, make recommendation for a single planning 

condition controlling construction working hours. 
 
7.4 Education – Comment that education contribution should be made in accordance with DfE 

guidance. 
 
7.5 Greater Manchester Ecology Unit (GMEU) – Identify that that off-site compensation is 

required in lieu of habitat to be lost on site.  It is recommended that the compensation includes 
species-rich grassland suitable for pollinators.  Our current estimate of the cost of offsetting 
units is £15,000/unit to cover creation, long term management and monitoring.  According to 
the submitted metric the scheme would result in a loss of 2.82 units, which would equate to 
£42k but the specific costings may be less, particularly if the area adjacent to the site was 
used. 

 
7.6 Tree Officer – No objections.  The footprint of the site consists of low value, self-seeded scrub 

trees and vegetation that would not be considered a constraint to development.  The only 
tree of more significant value is T3 Himalayan Birch, an off-site tree adjacent to the site.  The 
proposal is acceptable from an arboricultural perspective with the retention and protection of 
T3 to BS5837 during all works.  The submitted landscape plan is appropriate to the 
development with sufficient planting of suitable species trees. 

 
7.7 Green Spaces Manager – Recommend that a series of improvements are secured to meet 

both biodiversity and wider green space objectives.  A £50,000 commuted sum secured via 
section 106 agreement could secure: 

 
• A new footpath around Cedar Park to join up with other paths and form a good route 

from the Queens Road entrance to the Alderley Street entrance. 
• Increased tree planting on Smallshaw Fields – this will enhance some planned tree 

planting which will take place with the local community in 2023/24 planting season and 
has already been funded.  In addition to this we will be leaving longer grass in some 
areas and establishing wildflower areas where possible. 

• A small community orchard on the open space adjacent to Fern Lodge – in addition to 
planting fruit trees on the area to the south east corner of the site there will be wildflower 
seed planting around the fruit trees which will be maintained annually.  In the first few 
years additional planting may take place depending on success rates. 

• The Council will work with City of Trees and local registered social landlords to identify 
opportunities for tree planting in the local area along the highway and also on land owned 
and maintained by the RSL. 

• Where possible, local community and greenspace volunteers could be involved in 
maintenance of the orchard, wildflower areas and young trees. 

 
7.8 Greater Manchester Archaeology Advisory Unit (GMAAS) – Satisfied that the proposed 

development does not threaten the known or suspected archaeological heritage.  On this 
basis it is confirmed that there is no reason to seek to impose any archaeological 
requirements upon the applicant. 

 
7.9 Great Manchester Police (Designing Out Crime) – No objections, recommend a condition to 

reflect the physical security recommendations in section four of the submitted Crime Impact 
Statement.  

 
7.10 Local Highway Authority (LHA) – No objections subject to conditions.  Development is 

expected to result in an additional 25 trips in the AM and PM peak based on comparable 
developments so the additional traffic generated by the proposal should be accommodated 
on the local highway network without any significant detrimental impact.  The access/egress 

Page 9



from Queens Road onto Fern Bank Drive is satisfactory and meets requirements for a 
maximum gradient of 1 in 14.  In addition, the visibility splays comply with Manual for 
Streets/LHA requirements.  All types of vehicles can safely manoeuvre within the site using 
the turning heads and egress the development in a forward gear.  Conditions are 
recommended relevant to details and phasing of highway works, the provision of vehicle and 
cycle parking, construction management plan and highway condition surveys.  Requested 
that £30,000 is secured as part of a section 106 agreement to fund local pedestrian and 
cycling improvements. 

 
7.11 Transport for Greater Manchester (TfGM) – No comments received. 
 
7.12 Lead Local Flood Authority (LLFA) – Recommend pre-commencement conditions requiring 

submission of further drainage information. 
 
7.13 United Utilities (UU) – No objections subject to details of the site drainage being conditioned 

in accordance with the drainage hierarchy and that the site is drained on separate foul and 
surface water systems. 

 
 
8. ANALYSIS 
 
8.1 Section 38 of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004 states that applications 

should be determined in accordance with the development plan unless material 
considerations indicate otherwise. 

 
8.2 Paragraph 219 of the NPPF confirms that due weight should be given to relevant policies in 

existing plans according to their degree of consistency with the NPPF.  At the heart of the 
NPPF is the presumption in favour of sustainable development. 

 
8.3  The NPPF states that a presumption in favour of sustainable development should be at the 

heart of every application decision.  For decisions on planning applications this means:  
 

• approving development proposals that accord with the development plan without delay; 
and  

• where the development plan is absent, silent or relevant policies are out of date, granting 
planning permission unless:- 
- any adverse impacts of doing so would significantly and demonstrably outweigh the 

benefits, when assessed against the policies in the Framework taken as a whole; or  
- specific policies in the Framework indicate development should be restricted. 

 
 
9. PRINCIPLE OF DEVELOPMENT  
 
9.1 The site is unallocated on the UDP Proposals Map (2004), the surrounding area is primarily 

residential in character albeit for commercial uses found along the Queens Road / Lees Road 
(B6194) corridor.  Historically there had been employment uses to the east and west of the 
site.  This included Stamford and Hurst Mills; these have long since been demolished in 
replacement of housing developments. 

 
9.2 Planning permission approved in the early 2000s included the site as part of the residential 

development undertaken to the west of the site.  However, the site was earmarked for 
employment use as part of these applications with agreement reached to transfer the land to 
Council ownership.  TMBC Estates confirm that marketing of the site for employment use had 
taken place, the last such exercise being in 2016 with no expressions of interest received. 

 
9.3 The NPPF requires local planning authorities to support the delivery of a wide choice of 

quality homes in sustainable locations.  Paragraph 60 of the NPPF identifies the Government 

Page 10



objective to significantly boost the supply of homes, stating that it is important that a sufficient 
amount and variety of land can come forward where it is needed and that land with permission 
is developed without unnecessary delay. 

 
9.4 Notwithstanding previous planning permissions pursuant to employment use, it remains that 

the site is not allocated on the adopted UDP proposals map, it is also not subject to any other 
designations.  Policy H2 of the UDP (Unallocated Sites) applies to housing development 
proposed on such unallocated sites within the borough, it gives preference to the reuse of 
previously developed sites. 

 
9.5 In terms of the interpreting the site’s status as either green field / previously developed or 

brownfield land (PDL), the NPPF advises that land which has blended into the landscape 
should be excluded from PDL.  Notwithstanding the level of vegetation, there are significant 
remains from the previous development in the form of hardstanding, access roads and 
boundary treatments such that it is PDL for the purposes of the planning assessment.  The 
site’s overall environmental condition is of a poor character, largely overgrown and is 
attracting litter which reflects negatively on the locality.  The opportunity to redevelop the site 
would address what appears to be longstanding issues.  

 
9.6 The site’s potential for residential development is identified within the Tameside Strategic 

Housing and Economic Land availability assessment (SHELAA).  The SHELAA identifies the 
site as brownfield with an indicative development threshold of 26 dwellings.  However, this 
does not mean that planning permission should be granted as it is based on a high level 
assessment of the site for the purposes of determining housing land supply only. 

 
9.7 However, the Council cannot demonstrate a deliverable five year supply of housing land.  It 

is therefore recognised that the NPPF is a material consideration that carries substantial 
weight in the decision making process.  Assuming the development is considered 
sustainable, the NPPF is clear that where no five year supply can be demonstrated, the 
presumption in favour of sustainable development identified at paragraph 11 of the NPPF 
should be used to determine planning applications.  The opportunity to develop the site for 
32 dwellings would make a positive contribution to housing land supply, this should be 
apportioned due weight in the decision making process. 

 
9.8 The site’s location is within a highly accessible area.  Hurst Cross is an established suburb 

which is well connected to public transport, local services and employment uses.  In terms of 
the assessment against the sustainable credentials identified within paragraph 11 of the 
NPPF (economic, social & environmental), there would be direct economic gains associated 
with the construction phase of the development.  The social role would be fulfilled with the 
commitment to housing.  On the matter of the environmental impact and the sustainable 
credentials, the redevelopment of PDL carries significant weight along with the locational 
factors relating to access to services and transport, appropriate levels of ecological mitigation 
can be secured and the houses would be designed to reduce energy/carbon dioxide 
emissions.  The overall sustainable credentials are not questioned, and the proposals are 
considered to achieve the three dimensions of sustainable development through the 
contribution to the supply of housing within a sustainable location. 

 
9.9 Residential development is considered to be an efficient and appropriate use of the site, 

which has been a long term vacancy, the principle of securing the sites stewardship aligned 
to the Council’s housing land supply is welcomed.  The development would be compatible 
with adjacent uses and the location close to associated amenities around Hurst Cross 
dictates that it is a sustainable location for planning purposes. 

 
9.10 Representations have been made suggesting that the site was formally used as a burial 

ground which is subject to restrictive covenants.  Restrictive covenants are private matters 
that are not material to planning decisions.  Notwithstanding this, and for information only, 
historic mapping shows that the site previously supported a reservoir and associated 

Page 11



infrastructure, which served nearby mill complexes.  Discussion with Estates confirms that a 
title review did not raise any restrictive covenants applicable to the site; the issues raised in 
the representations are not relevant to the planning assessment. 

 
 
10. DESIGN & LAYOUT 
 
10.1 UDP policies, NPPF and the guidance of the adopted Residential Design Guide SPD are 

clear in their expectations of achieving high quality development that enhances a locality and 
contributes to place making.  The NPPF emphasises that development that is not well 
designed should be refused where it fails to take into account local supplementary planning 
documents (para. 134). 

 
10.2 Policy RD22 of the adopted SPD applies specifically to infill development it advises that: 
 

• Plot and boundary widths should align with the surrounding street. 
• Scale and mass of dwellings should align with their surroundings. 
• Architectural styles and materials should generally align with the existing. 
• Development must follow an existing building line and orientation, particularly at road 

frontage. 
• Ensuring privacy distances are achieved. 
• Proposals should not land lock other potential development sites. 
• Development should provide appropriate outdoor amenity space, parking & access. 

 
10.3 Policies C1 and H10 of the UDP seeks to ensure that developments are designed to respect 

their surroundings and contribute positively to the character of the area, having particular 
regard to the layout, density, design, scale, height, massing, appearance, materials and 
landscaping prevalent in the area.  New development should be compatible with the local 
character and encourage local distinctiveness through the use of appropriate and high-quality 
building materials, architectural detailing and boundary treatment. 

 
10.4 Negotiations with the applicant have secured significant amendments to the proposed layout 

as now presented.  This has included a re-configuration to the access road and layout of 
properties, aligned to reducing the dominance of the highway and creating a better 
relationship between the proposed dwellings and existing properties on Freshwater Drive. 

 
10.5 The main site constraint to influence the design and layout is an onsite sewer, this runs a 

long a north to south axis across the frontage of the site.  The layout addresses this with the 
access drive running along the alignment of the sewer to where it terminates as cul-de-sac 
with communal parking. 

 
10.6 The properties would take a traditional layout, being sited with an active frontage to the 

highway carriageway based on two cul-de-sacs.  The cul-de-sacs terminate at private drives, 
designed to provide a pedestrian friendly, traffic calmed, environment.  The layout and form 
mirrors that of the established pattern of development of the existing housing stock, which 
includes clearly defined linear streets and also includes 3 storey accommodation. 

 
10.7 The amended layout responds more positively to the site conditions.  The layout works to 

‘perimeter block’ principles which would see the dwellings arranged in a ‘back to back’ 
formation to those on Freshwater Drive.  Looked at in the wider context, the proposed 
housing would appear as a natural continuation to infill development which has occurred 
within the locality across previous years.  The layout would also create an active frontage to 
Queens Road/Fern Lodge Drive and with this, provides welcome passive surveillance across 
the existing area of public open space which would be retained and undisturbed by the 
development. 

 

Page 12



10.8 The housing mix would comprise of five different house types within a semi-detached and 
terrace format.  This would range from 2 to 3 storeys in height providing a range of 3 and 4 
bed accommodation.  The design and finish of the properties would observe established 
urban design principles, and as a group the dwellings would provide visual interest.  
Properties located on corner plots would be dual aspect which reinforces engagement to the 
street.  Feature windows within the elevations provide a more contemporary finish, examples 
of where the developer has constructed these properties elsewhere identifies that they are 
of a good quality. 

 
10.9 The layout and property types have also been designed so that properties on the southern 

boundary to Freshwater Drive stand at 2.5 storeys in height with an eaves height comparable 
to a traditional 2 storey dwelling.  The interface distance would accord with relevant 
separation distances to existing dwellings.  Garden sizes would all be well proportioned 
across all properties. 

 
10.10 The scale of the development would equate to a density of approximately 45 dwellings per 

hectare, driven by the use of terraces.  This is considered to be a highly efficient use of the 
land which is aligned to sustainable principles of development within accessible urban areas.  
Overall, the scale of the development, both in terms of the numbers and building heights, is 
appropriate to the local context. 

 
10.11 With regard to parking arrangements, the layout does not appear to be overly car dominated, 

parking is provided both in front and to the side of dwellings, where the impact is offset by 
soft landscaping within front gardens as well as communal planting areas.  The highway 
geometry ensures that there is sufficient capacity within the carriageway to accommodate 
visitor parking.  All of the properties are served with front to rear access which will allow for 
the storage of bins outside of the public domain and therefore not interfering with the street 
scene. 

 
10.12 Boundary treatments have not been defined, it is proposed that this can be appropriately 

conditioned, the desire would be to see a mixture of treatments with all public facing 
boundaries being of a suitably quality design.  The aim would be to create private defensible 
space and also to provide a suitable finish to public areas.  Where space allows, frontages 
would support planting in the form of trees and shrubs, this in turn provides a visual benefit 
by softening the site’s overall appearance. 

 
10.13  Having full consideration to the design merits of the proposal and the layout of the scheme, 

it is considered that the development would deliver an attractive residential environment 
which would enhance the existing area.  The scale and density of the development is 
reflective to that of housing within the locality.  Overall, the design and layout should 
successfully assimilate with the existing housing stock, whilst providing good quality family 
housing.  The proposal adheres to the objectives of UDP policy H10 and the adopted SPD 
which stress the importance of residential development being of an appropriate design, scale, 
density and layout. 

 
 
11. RESIDENTIAL AMENITY 
 
11.1 The adopted policies within the Council’s Residential Design Guide Supplementary Planning 

Document strive to raise design standards; they should be applied along with the criteria of 
Building for Life (BFL).  Good design is aligned to the delivery of high residential amenity 
standards.  This should reflect equally on the environment of existing residents as well as 
that of future residents.  Paragraph 130(f) of the NPPF states that development should seek 
to provide a high standard of amenity for existing and future users alike.  This is reflected in 
policy H10 and the recommendations of the Residential Design Guide SPD, which seek to 
ensure that all development has regard to the amenity of existing and proposed properties. 

 

Page 13



11.2  The layout and house types ‘B’ and ‘D’ would back on to Freshwater Drive, they have been 
designed so that they are 2.5 storeys on the rear elevation, the eaves height is therefore 
comparable to the existing properties, and sections provided demonstrate how this would be 
achieved.  The siting of the properties would be a minimum of 22 metres away from the rear 
elevation from the nearest property on Freshwater Drive and thus compliant with policy RD5. 

 
11.3  Disruption from the development would be mainly attributable to the construction phase.  A 

construction environment management plan (CEMP) could be secured by planning condition 
to ensure best practice measures are employed and overall disturbance is kept to a minimum.  
The site access is isolated form existing properties so associated vehicle moments from 
construction traffic should not be readily discernible.  Environmental Health have no 
objections to the proposals in their consultation. 

 
11.4  With regard to the amenity which will be afforded to the residents of the development, it is of 

note that each of the properties meets with the technical housing standards.  The close 
proximity of the site to Hurst Cross, existing areas of open space, transport links, nearby local 
amenities and employment opportunities means that residents would also benefit from an 
acceptable standard of access to local services. 

 
 
12. HIGHWAYS AND ACCESS  
 
12.1  Policy T1 requires all developments to be designed to improve the safety for all road users.  

Likewise paragraph 111 of the NPPF confirms that development should only be refused on 
highways grounds if there would be an unacceptable impact on highway safety, or the 
residual cumulative impacts on the road network would be severe. 

 
12.2 The site already has an established (gated) vehicle entrance which is located directly off Fern 

Lodge, a small spur road that links to Queens Road directly to the west.  The entrance would 
extend from this access and would comprise a traditional 5.5m wide carriageway served by 
2m wide footways, this would then taper down to 4.8m within the site with inclusion of some 
paved margins.  The road would terminate as a cul-de-sac, off which private drives would 
serve several individual plots. 

 
12.3 Following groundworks, site levels would be favourable and well within a maximum 1:14 

gradient.  These levels are conducive to meeting accessibility requirements for vehicles and 
pedestrian users alike.  This detail would be secured by condition. 

 
12.4 The access arrangements are somewhat unique in that the development would be relatively 

isolated from existing properties.  Vehicle trips generated from the development would not 
be significant, it is anticipated that there would be an additional 25 trips in the AM and PM 
peak.  These trips would disperse immediately onto Queens Road and outside of 
neighbouring residential areas.  The LHA confirm that traffic can be accommodated on the 
local highway network without any detrimental impact to safety. 
 

12.5 The LHA also comment that the access arrangements are suitable to protect all road users.  
The highway within the development would be designed to ensure that vehicle speeds are 
low.  Adopted roads within the development would be treated with tarmac with private 
driveways block paved.  In line with the maximum standards of the adopted SPD on parking, 
all of the properties have two off street parking spaces.  The position and orientation of the 
properties ensures that parking spaces are accessible and would also have good 
surveillance. 
 

12.6 A planning condition is proposed to secure carriageway improvement to the sites access on 
Fern Lodge, this would include the resurfacing of the carriageway and footways  To facilitate 
pedestrian movements, and impress low speeds on approaching vehicles, a raised table is 

Page 14



proposed, this would link existing footways serving adjacent green spaces which are located 
either side of the carriageway. 

 
12.7 The proposal has appropriately demonstrated that safe and convenient access can be 

achieved to meet all highway users’ requirements. The disruption associated with traffic 
during the construction period can be managed to ensure minimal disruption would occur 
during the temporary construction period.  Once operational, the associated traffic 
movements from the site would not be significant and there would remain appropriate 
capacity on the local network.  Safety would not be compromised and future residents would 
have direct access to public transport. The proposals would be in compliance with the 
requirements of T1, T7, T10 and T11 and NPPF paragraph 111. 

 
 
13. DRAINAGE AND FLOOD RISK 
 
13.1 The site is in flood zone 1 and is at a lower risk of flooding.  The proposals would see the 

removal of existing vegetation, and whilst gardens and soft landscaping areas would be 
incorporated as part of the design, there would nonetheless be an increase in hard surfacing 
across the site.  Hard surface areas would be positively drained via dedicated surface water 
drainage, this would ensure overall runoff levels are comparable to greenfield rates. 

 
13.2 Site investigation confirm the presence of clay deposits within the ground, this dictates that 

infiltration would not be suitable at the site, drainage would therefore need to be addressed 
via an attenuated system into the existing sewer network. 

 
13.3  The comments raised by the LLFA and UU in their review confirm that drainage can be 

adequately addressed via a condition.  Such a condition will ensure that the design and 
drainage strategy would be adequate for the site and that the proposals would not result in a 
detrimental impact on flood risk or drainage capacity within the locality. 

 
 
14. GROUND CONDITIONS  
 
14.1 The site falls with a defined coal mining development high risk area, in addition there is likely 

to be onsite contamination associated with legacy of the previous industrial use.  There are 
known shallow mine workings in and around the site.  A Coal Mining Risk Report has been 
prepared along with onsite site investigation reports to establish existing ground conditions. 

 
14.2 In review of the coal mining report, the Coal Authority state that there is historic unrecorded 

underground coal mining at shallow depth and that a thick coal seam outcropped across the 
site.  Ultimately further site investigation will determine the full extent of mine workings, and 
can be secured by condition.  To mitigate against their presence, grouting will need to be 
undertaken and properties will require more specialist foundation design to protect against 
both stability and potential mine gas. 

 
14.3 The Environmental Protection Unit (EPU) have reviewed the initial site investigation appraisal 

which identified the presence of contamination within the site including hydrocarbons and 
asbestos.  In addition there is a degree of made ground from historic infill.  Further 
investigation will be required to inform the overall remediation strategy.  The remediation of 
contaminate is a benefit of the development, it is not a constraint to prohibit development and 
there are no objections raised to the proposals subject to recommended conditions.  The 
conditions recommended by the EPU are considered reasonable and necessary to ensure 
that future users of the proposed development would not be exposed to potential risks caused 
by contamination at the site. 

 

Page 15



14.4 Consultation with both the Coal Authority and the Contaminated Land Officer confirm, that 
subject to the safeguarding of conditions, there are no reasons why the site can’t be 
redeveloped for residential purposes.  There is compliance with UDP policy in this regard. 

 
 
15. LANDSCAPING, TREES & ECOLOGY 
 
15.1 Paragraph 174 of the NPPF states that the planning system should contribute to and enhance 

the natural and local environment.  A full tree survey has been undertaken along with an 
extended habitat survey. 

 
15.2  The trees and vegetation within the site are largely set following clearance of the former 

reservoirs.  The tree survey identified three individual and four groups of trees within and 
immediately around the site.  Species include mature Willow, Birch and Cherry and are 
generally of low amenity value.  The Tree Officer identifies that there is only a single Birch 
tree of any significant amenity value, this is located just outside of the site boundary and 
would therefore not be directly impacted upon by the proposals. 

 
15.3 In terms of ecology, no statutory protected sites lie on the site or immediately adjacent to the 

site boundary.  The nearest is Knot Hill Local Nature Reserve (LNR) which lies 1.2km to the 
north-east of the site.  An extended phase 1 habitat survey and biodiversity impact 
assessment have been submitted with the application which show that there are no protected 
species present. 

 
15.4 The habitats presented on the site are common throughout the UK.  Two species listed on 

the Greater Manchester Biodiversity Action Plan were found within localised areas in low 
numbers on the site.  No other nationally rare, or locally rare, plant species were identified 
during the survey.  In summary the site comprises ephemeral/short perennial vegetation, 
dense and scattered scrub and trees and bare ground.  The scrub offers cover from 
predation, nesting bird habitat and foraging habitat.  The scrub and ephemeral vegetation 
offer a source of pollen and nectar for invertebrates. 

 
15.5 The applicant has undertaken a Biodiversity Impact Assessment which sets out what will be 

lost and what can be achieved through landscaping on the site.  There would clearly be a 
loss of habitat on site due to buildings, sealed surfaces and amenity grassland.  The 
introduction of native hedgerows as part of a landscaping strategy would help to mitigate this 
to an extent.  To meet the requirements of NPPF paragraph 180, relevant to compensation 
of existing habitat at a commuted sum is required to fund improvements off-site at nearby 
receptor sites. 

 
15.6 In addition, the Green Space Manager has made a series of recommendations relevant to 

off-site biodiversity improvements within the immediate vicinity of the site.  The package of 
works proposed would address ecology requirements as well as matters relevant to green 
space improvements required to satisfy UDP Policy H5. 

 
15.7 As a result if mitigation measures, it has been demonstrated that a suitable level of 

assessment has been undertaken, and there is no evidence of any adverse effect upon 
protected species and the proposals are in accordance with policy N7: Protected Species of 
the UDP. 

 
15.8 The proposals have been considered by GMEU who are supportive of the site appraisal as 

well as the approach to off-site biodiversity enhancements.  Conditions could control the 
overall level of planting across the site, as well as the provision of any bat and bird boxes.  
Subject to this requirement, the proposals are considered to be in accordance with the 
requirements of policy N4, N5 and NPPF paragraph 174. 

 
 

Page 16



16. DEVELOPMENT CONTRIBUTIONS 
 
16.1 The proposal is a major development, where there would normally be a requirement to meet 

affordable housing (15%), green space and highways requirements as per polices H4, H5 
and T13 of the UDP. 

 
16.2 NPPF Paragraph 57 advises that planning obligations must only be sought where they meet 

all of the following tests: 
 

a) necessary to make the development acceptable in planning terms; 
b) directly related to the development; and 
c) fairly and reasonably related in scale and kind to the development. 

 
16.3 NPPF Paragraph 58 advises: ‘It is up to the applicant to demonstrate whether particular 

circumstances justify the need for a viability assessment at the application stage.  The weight 
to be given to a viability assessment is a matter for the decision maker, having regard to all 
the circumstances in the case, including whether the plan and the viability evidence 
underpinning it is up to date, and any change in site circumstances since the plan was brought 
into force.  All viability assessments, including any undertaken at the plan making stage, 
should reflect the recommended approach in national planning guidance, including 
standardised inputs, and should be made publicly available’. 

 
16.4 Section 106 obligations may be challenged where it can be suitably demonstrated that they 

would undermine delivery of a site.  The NPPF is clear that significant weight should be 
attributed to delivery of housing particularly during periods of under-supply.  It remains that 
the Council cannot demonstrate a five year supply of housing. 
 

16.5 When challenging planning obligations the circumstances will be dependent on the individual 
characteristics of a particular site, and its particular development costs.  Where viability can 
be genuinely demonstrated it is right that obligations should be considered in the context of 
wider planning benefits.  It may therefore be reasonable to reduce or even waiver 
contributions in their entirety in such circumstances. 
 

16.6 The developer has challenged development contributions on viability grounds.  The case 
presented is based on the requirement to address abnormal ground conditions, requirements 
to meet biodiversity compensation in addition to the recognised increase in construction 
costs. 
 

16.7 The applicant has submitted a viability report which has been reviewed independently to 
provide an objective assessment.  The report provides comment on financial viability, taking 
into account current market conditions.  The appraisal includes assessment of a series of 
viability appraisals to assess the impact of section 106 contributions relevant to affordable 
housing, education, highways and greenspace.  This process has been undertaken in 
accordance with national policy guidance, that viability is a material consideration.  There are 
site specific abnormal works relating to ground conditions.  The independent assessment has 
concluded that a full commitment to the suite of section 106 requirements would undermine 
the deliverability of the site.  However, it has been identified that the development can support 
a contribution of £50,000 towards off-site green space improvements which includes 
appropriate level of biodiversity mitigation.  Taking into account the relevant development 
plan policies, and other material considerations, it is recommended that this contribution is 
allocated to fund off-site green space biodiversity and environmental improvements which 
will enhance the local environment and benefit existing and proposed local residents alike. 

 
 
17. OTHER MATTERS 
 

Page 17



17.1 Noise: Noise affecting the development is largely transport based as there are immediate 
commercial or industrial uses within an influencing distance of the site.  The EHO is satisfied 
that a suitable standard of amenity level can be achieved and there are no requirements for 
any noise related planning conditions.  A construction management plan (to be conditioned) 
will ensure disturbance is kept to a minimum during the construction period.  Residential use 
is fully compatible with the local established character, there is no reason why existing 
residents amenity should be impacted upon negatively from the development. 

 
17.2 Heritage: There are no recorded assets within the vicinity of the site which the proposals 

could have an influence upon.  Consultation with GMAAS also confirms that the proposed 
development does not threaten any known or suspected archaeological heritage. 

 
17.3 Security: The application has been accompanied by a Crime Impact Statement.  Subject to 

implementation of the recommendations, the security of the future occupants and 
neighbouring properties would be adequately met.  The layout ensures there is good levels 
of passive surveillance over public and private areas. 

 
 
18. CONCLUSION 
 
18.1 At the heart of the NPPF is a presumption in favour of sustainable development, this requires 

planning applications that accord with the adopted development plan to be approved without 
delay, and where the development plan is absent, silent or out of date, planning permission 
should be granted unless the adverse impacts of doing so would significantly and 
demonstrably outweigh the benefits when assessed against the policies in the framework as 
a whole or specific policies in the framework indicate that development should be restricted. 

 
18.2 A balanced assessment has been undertaken of the proposals and it is recommended that 

the application should be approved having regard to the relevant policies of the development 
plan, national planning policy and guidance and all material considerations raised. 

 
18.3 The site is previously developed land which detracts from the locality in its current state.  It 

is located within a highly accessible location within a well serviced suburb, the proposals 
would represent an efficient use of urban land.  Given the prevailing residential nature of the 
locality residential represents the preferred land use for its redevelopment.  The 
redevelopment of the site would bring about a number of benefits including: 

 
• Appropriate redevelopment of previously developed land; 
• Valued contribution to housing in a period undersupply; 
• Environmental improvements; 
• Offsite infrastructure contributions;  
• Construction/employment opportunities. 

 
18.4 The proposals would be readily compatible with the housing development that is established 

within the locality.  The scale and design of the development is deemed to be appropriate in 
that it would not give rise to any adverse environmental or amenity issues.  The development 
would add to and contribute to much needed, good quality family housing.  This would also 
accord with the requirements of policy H2 which promotes the redevelopment of previously 
developed sites for residential purposes. 

 
18.5 The design creates a positive and welcoming residential environment.  The dwellings would 

make a positive contribution to the local housing stock, in accordance with core principles of 
the NPPF. 

 
18.6 Taking into account the relevant development plan policies and other material 

considerations, subject to the identified mitigation measures, it is not considered that there 
are any significant and demonstrable adverse impacts that would outweigh the benefits 

Page 18



associated with the granting of planning permission.  The proposals represent an efficient re-
use of a largely previously developed site that would meet sustainability requirements, and 
contribute positively to the borough’s affordable housing supply. 

 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
 

That Members resolve to grant planning permission for the development subject to the following: 
 

(i) To complete a suitable legal agreement under S106 of the Town and Country Planning 
Act 1990 (as amended) to secure financial contributions to off-site ecology and green 
space infrastructure to the satisfaction of the Borough Solicitor; and 

 
(ii) The following conditions: 

 
CONDITIONS 
 
1. The development hereby permitted shall be begun before the expiration of three years from 

the date of this permission. 
 
Reason: In order to comply with the provision of Section 91 of the Town and Country Planning 
Act 1990. 
 

2. The development hereby approved shall be carried out strictly in accordance with the plans 
and specifications as approved unless required by any other conditions in this permission. 
 
Site Location Plan M4852 (PL) 100 
Site Layout M4852 (PL) 10 rev C 
House Type A / C M4852 (PL) 03 rev C  
House Type B M4852 (PL) 04 rev C  
House Type D M4852 (PL) 05 rev B 
House Type E M4852 (PL) 06 rev B 
Tree Protection Plan 6849.02 
 
Arboricultural Impact Assessment ref MG/6849/AIA&AMS/MAY22 
Biodiversity Impact Assessment July 2022 
Design & Access Statement rev A received February 2023 
Coal Mining Risk Assessment LKC 16 1058a  
Crime Impact Statement ref 2022/0340/CIS/01 
Environment Sustainability Statement   
Extended Phase 1 Habitat Survey April 2022 
Flood Risk Assessment ref SP/SJG 
Phase 1 Preliminary Risk Assessment ref LKC 16 1058a 
Phase 1 Habitat Survey April 2022 
Planning Statement – ref Aug 2022 
Final Phase 2 Geo-Environmental Investigation ref LKC 16 1058a 
Transport Assessment ref 23877-HYD-XX-XX-RP-TP-5001-P01 
Travel Plan ref 23877-HYD-XX-XX-RP-TP-6001-P01 
Tree Survey report – MG/6849/TSR/APR22 
Viability Assessment ref July 2021 
 
Reason: In the interests of the visual amenities of the locality and in accordance with UDP 
Policies and relevant national Planning Guidance. 
 

3. Notwithstanding any description of materials in the application, samples and/or full 
specification of materials to be used: externally on the building; in the construction of all 
boundary walls, fences and railings; and, in the finishes to all external hard-surfaces have 

Page 19



been submitted to, and approved in writing by, the local planning authority prior to their use 
on site.  Such details shall include the type, colour and texture of the materials.  Development 
shall be carried out in accordance with the approved details and retained as such thereafter. 
 
Reason: In the interests of the visual amenities of the locality, in accordance with polices 
H10: Detailed Design of Housing Developments, OL10: Landscape Quality and Character 
and C1: Townscape and Urban Form 
 

4. No development, other than site clearance and site compound set up, shall commence until 
a remediation strategy, detailing the works and measures required to address any 
unacceptable risks posed by contamination at the site to human health, buildings and the 
environment has been submitted to, and approved in writing by, the Local Planning Authority 
(LPA).  The scheme shall be implemented and verified as approved and shall include all of 
the following components unless the LPA dispenses with any such requirement specifically 
in writing:  
 
1. A Preliminary Risk Assessment which has identified: - All previous and current uses of the 
site and surrounding area.  All potential contaminants associated with those uses.  A 
conceptual site model identifying all potential sources, pathways, receptors and pollutant 
linkages. 
2. A site investigation strategy, based on the Preliminary Risk Assessment in (1) detailing all 
investigations including sampling, analysis and monitoring that will be undertaken at the site 
in order to enable the nature and extent of any contamination to be determined and a detailed 
assessment of the risks posed to be carried out.  The strategy shall be approved in writing 
by the LPA prior to any investigation works commencing at the site. 
3. The findings of the site investigation and detailed risk assessments referred to in point (2) 
including all relevant soil / water analysis and ground gas / groundwater monitoring data.  
4. Based on the site investigation and detailed risk assessment referred to in point (3) an 
options appraisal and remediation strategy setting out full details of the remediation works 
and measures required to address any unacceptable risks posed by contamination and how 
they are to be implemented. 
5. A verification plan detailing the information that will be obtained in order to demonstrate 
the works and measures set out in the remediation strategy in (4) have been fully 
implemented including any requirements for long term monitoring and maintenance. 
 
Reason: To ensure any unacceptable risks posed by contamination are appropriately 
addressed and the site is suitable for its proposed use in accordance with paragraph 183 of 
the National Planning Policy Framework. 
 

5. Upon completion of any approved remediation scheme(s), and prior to occupation, a 
verification / completion report demonstrating all remedial works and measures detailed in 
the scheme(s) have been fully implemented shall be submitted to, and approved in writing 
by, the LPA.  The report shall also include full details of the arrangements for any long term 
monitoring and maintenance as identified in the approved verification plan.  The long term 
monitoring and maintenance shall be undertaken as approved.  
 
If, during development, contamination not previously identified is encountered, then the LPA 
shall be informed and no further development (unless otherwise agreed in writing with the 
LPA, shall be undertaken at the site until a remediation strategy detailing how this 
contamination will be appropriately addressed and the remedial works verified has been 
submitted to, and approved in writing by the LPA.  The remediation strategy shall be fully 
implemented and verified as approved.  The discharge of this planning condition will be given 
in writing by the LPA on completion of the development and once all information specified 
within this condition and any other requested information has been provided to the 
satisfaction of the LPA and occupation of the development shall not commence until this time 
unless otherwise agreed in writing by the LPA. 
 

Page 20



Reason: To ensure any unacceptable risks posed by contamination are appropriately 
addressed and the site is suitable for its proposed use in accordance with paragraph 183 of 
the National Planning Policy Framework. 
 

6. No development shall commence until: 
 
a) A scheme of intrusive investigations has been carried out on site to establish the risks 
posed to the development by past coal mining activity, and; 
b) Any remediation works and/or mitigation measures to address land instability arising from 
coal mining legacy, as may be necessary, have been implemented on site in full in order to 
ensure that the site is safe and stable for the development proposed. 
 
The intrusive site investigations and remedial works shall be carried out in accordance with 
authoritative UK guidance.  
 
Reason: To ensure that adequate information pertaining to ground conditions and coal mining 
legacy is available to enable appropriate remedial and mitigation measures to be identified 
and carried out before building works commence on site.  This is in order to ensure the safety 
and stability of the development, in accordance with paragraphs 183 and 184 of the National 
Planning Policy Framework. 
 

7. Prior to the occupation of the development, or it being taken into beneficial use, a signed 
statement or declaration prepared by a suitably competent person confirming that the site is, 
or has been made, safe and stable for the approved development shall be submitted to the 
Local Planning Authority for approval in writing.  This document shall confirm the methods 
and findings of the intrusive site investigations and the completion of any remedial works 
and/or mitigation necessary to address the risks posed by past coal mining activity. 
 
Reason: To ensure any unacceptable risks posed by contamination are appropriately 
addressed and the site is suitable for its proposed use in accordance with paragraph 184 of 
the National Planning Policy Framework. 
 

8. No development, other than site clearance and site compound set up, shall commence until 
details of a sustainable surface water drainage scheme and a foul water drainage scheme 
shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority.  The drainage 
schemes must include: 
 
(i) An investigation of the hierarchy of drainage options in the National Planning Practice 

Guidance (or any subsequent amendment thereof).  This investigation shall include 
evidence of an assessment of ground conditions and the potential for infiltration of 
surface water in accordance with BRE365; 

(ii) A restricted rate of discharge of surface water agreed with the LPA (if it is agreed that 
infiltration is discounted by the investigations); 

(iii) Levels of the proposed drainage systems including proposed ground and finished floor 
levels in AOD; 

(iv) Incorporate mitigation measures to manage the risk of sewer surcharge where 
applicable; and  

(v) Foul and surface water shall drain on separate systems. 

The approved schemes shall also be in accordance with the Non-Statutory Technical 
Standards for Sustainable Drainage Systems (March 2015) or any subsequent replacement 
national standards.  Prior to occupation of the proposed development, the drainage schemes 
shall be completed in accordance with the approved details and retained thereafter for the 
lifetime of the development. 
 
Reason: To ensure proper drainage of the area, in accordance with UDP policy U3 Water 
Services for Developments and Section 14 NPPF. 

Page 21



 
9. The car parking spaces to serve each dwelling as part of the development hereby approved 

shall be laid out as shown on the approved site plan prior to the first occupation of that 
dwelling and shall be retained free from obstruction for their intended use thereafter.  
Driveways shall be constructed on a level which prevents displacement of materials or 
surface water onto the highway and shall be retained as such thereafter. 
 
Reason: In the interest of highway safety, in accordance with UDP Policy T1: Highway 
Improvement and Traffic Management. 
 

10. Prior to any works commencing on-site, a condition survey (including structural integrity) of 
the highways to be used by construction traffic shall be carried out.  The methodology of the 
survey shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the LPA and shall assess the existing 
state of the highway.  On completion of the development, a second condition survey shall be 
carried out and shall be submitted for the written approval of the LPA.  This shall identify 
defects attributable to the traffic ensuing from the development.  Any necessary remedial 
works shall be completed at the developer’s expense in accordance with a scheme to be 
approved in writing by the LPA. 
 
Reason: In the interest of highway safety, in accordance with UDP PolicyT1: Highway 
Improvement and Traffic Management. 
 

11. Construction of the highway, as per the plans approved under condition 2, shall not take 
place until a scheme of highway construction has been submitted to and approved in writing 
by the LPA.  The scheme shall include full details of: 
 
i. Phasing plan of highway works 
ii. Stage 1 Safety Audit – ‘Completion of preliminary design’ and subsequent Stages 2-4 

based on the Design Manual for Roads and Bridges document GG 119 – Road Safety 
Audit. 

iii. Surface and drainage details of all carriageways and footways. 
iv. Details of the works to the reinstatement of redundant vehicle access points as 

continuous footway to adoptable standards following the completion of the construction 
phase. 

v. Details of proposed retaining walls within the development including temporary retaining 
structures. 

vi. Details of the areas of the highway network within the site to be constructed to adoptable 
standards and the specification of the construction of these areas. 
i. Details of carriageway markings and signage. 
ii. Details of a lighting scheme to provide street lighting (to an adoptable standard), to 

the shared private driveway and pedestrian/cycle pathways have been submitted to 
and approved in writing by the LPA.  The scheme shall include details of how the 
lighting will be funded for both electricity supply and future maintenance. 

iii. Introduction of a raised pedestrian crossing to connect existing footpaths on Fern 
Lodge Drive. 

iv. Re-surfacing of the carriageway, footways and lining of Fern Lodge Drive to the 
junction with Queens Road. 
 

No part of the approved development shall be occupied until the approved highways works 
have been constructed in accordance with the approved details or phasing plan and the 
development shall be retained as such thereafter. 
 
Reason: In the interest of highway safety, in accordance with UDP PolicyT1: Highway 
Improvement and Traffic Management. 

 
12. No development, other than site clearance and site compound set up, shall commence until 

details of the proposed arrangements for future management and maintenance of the 

Page 22



proposed streets within the development shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the 
LPA.  The streets shall thereafter be maintained in accordance with the approved 
management and maintenance details until such time as an agreement has been entered 
into under Section 38 of the Highways Act 1980 or a private management and maintenance 
company has been established.  

 
Reason: In the interest of highway safety, in accordance with UDP PolicyT1: Highway 
Improvement and Traffic Management. 
 

13. The new estate road/access shall be constructed in accordance with the Tameside MBC 
Specification for Construction of Estate Roads to at least base course level before any 
development takes place within the site. 
 
Reason: In the interest of highway safety, in accordance with UDP PolicyT1: Highway 
Improvement and Traffic Management. 

 
14. No development shall commence until such time as a Demolition Construction Environment 

Management Plan has been submitted to and approved in writing by the LPA.  This shall 
include details of: 
- Wheel wash facilities for construction vehicles;  
- Arrangements for temporary construction access;  
- Contractor and construction worker car parking;  
- Turning facilities during the remediation and construction phases;  
- Details of on-site storage facilities;  
- Details of restriction to weight limits of construction vehicles along Moss Lane; and 
- Emergency contact details of the site manager to be displayed publically. 

 
The development shall be carried out in accordance with the approved Construction 
Environmental Management Plan. 
 
Reason: In the interest of highway safety, in accordance with UDP PolicyT1: Highway 
Improvement and Traffic Management. 

 
15. No part of the development hereby approved shall be occupied until details of the secured 

cycle storage provision to serve apartments have been submitted to and approved in writing 
by the LPA.  The details shall include scaled plans showing the location of storage and details 
of the means of enclosure.  The secured cycle storage arrangements shall be implemented 
in accordance with the approved details prior to the occupation of the first apartment and 
shall be retained as such thereafter. 
 
Reason: In the interest of promoting use of public transport and reducing environmental 
impact, in accordance with UDP Policies T1: Highway Improvement and Traffic Management. 
 

16. As indicated on the approved plan, prior to the first occupation of the development hereby 
approved an electric vehicle charging design shall be approved in writing by the LPA and 
shall be retained as such thereafter. which complies to the requirements listed below:-  
The specification of the charging points installed shall: 
a. be designed and installed in accordance with the appropriate parts of BS EN 61851 (or 

any subsequent replacement standard in effect at the date of the installation); 
b. have a minimum rated output of 7 kW, measured or calculated at a nominal supply 

voltage of 230VAC; 
c. be fitted with a universal socket (known as an untethered electric vehicle charge point); 
d. be fitted with a charging equipment status indicator using lights, LEDs or display; and 
e. a minimum of Mode 3 or equivalent 

 
Reason: In the interest of sustainability to promote sustainable travel. 

 

Page 23



17. During demolition/construction no work (including vehicle and plant movements, deliveries, 
loading and unloading) shall take place outside the hours of 07:30 and 18:00 Mondays to 
Fridays and 08:00 to 13:00 Saturdays.  No work shall take place on Sundays and Bank 
Holidays.  
 
Reason: To protect the amenities of occupants of nearby properties/dwelling houses in 
accordance with UDP policies 1.12 and E6. 

 
18. The development hereby approved shall be carried in accordance with the measures listed 

in the Security Strategy (Section 4) of the Crime Impact Statement submitted with the 
planning application and shall be retained as such thereafter. 
 
Reason: In the interests of security and residential amenity. 

 
19. No development, other than site clearance and site compound set up, shall take place until 

there has been submitted to and approved in writing by the LPA, full details of both hard and 
soft landscaping works, including details of the species, positions and planted heights of 
proposed trees and shrubs; together with details of the position and condition of any existing 
trees and hedgerows to be retained.  The approved hard landscaping details shall be 
implemented prior to the occupation of the building(s). 
 
Reason: In the interests of the visual amenities of the locality, in accordance with UDP Policy 
C1 Townscape and Urban form , OL10 Landscape Quality and Character and H10 Detailed 
Design of Housing Developments.  
 

20. All planting, seeding or turfing comprised in the approved details of landscaping shall be 
carried out in the first planting and seeding seasons following the occupation of the buildings 
or the completion of the development, whichever is the sooner; and any trees or plants which 
die within a period of five years from the completion of the development, are removed, or 
become seriously damaged or diseased shall be replaced in the next planting season with 
others of similar size and species. 

21.  
Reason: In the interests of the visual amenities of the locality, in accordance with UDP Policy 
C1 Townscape and Urban form , OL10 Landscape Quality and Character and H10 Detailed 
Design of Housing Developments.  
 

22. The erection of fencing for the protection of any retained trees shall be undertaken in 
accordance with the approved plans and particulars before any equipment, machinery or 
materials are brought on to the site for the purposes of the development, and shall be 
maintained until all equipment, machinery and surplus materials have been removed from 
the site.  Nothing shall be stored or placed in any area fenced off in accordance with this 
condition and the ground levels within those areas shall not be altered, nor shall any 
excavation be made, without the written consent of the LPA. 

 
Reason: To safeguard existing trees, in the interest of visual amenity in accordance with UDP 
policy N5: Trees within Development Sites. 

 
23. No works to trees or shrubs shall occur between the 1 March and 31 August in any year 

unless a detailed bird nest survey by a suitably experienced ecologist has been carried out 
immediately prior to clearance and written confirmation provided that no active bird nests are 
present which has been agreed in writing by the LPA. 
 
Reason: In the interests of biodiversity in accordance with policy N7: Protected Species. 

 
24. A scheme for the Biodiversity Enhancement and Mitigation Measures including the planting 

of native trees and the provisions of bird and bat boxes shall be submitted to and approved 
in writing by the LPA.  The approved scheme shall be implemented prior to first occupation 

Page 24



of the development (or in accordance with a phasing plan which shall first be agreed in writing 
with the LPA) and shall be retained thereafter 

 
Reason: In the interests of biodiversity to ensure sufficient protection is afforded to wildlife in 
accordance with policy N7: Protected Species. 

Page 25



This page is intentionally left blank



I\R

I
\
R

C\B

I
\
R

C\B

T

A

R

M

A

C

GRASS

TARMAC

TARMAC

C/B

FERN LODGE DRIVE

TARMAC

TARMAC

T

A

R

M

A

C

GRASS

GRASS

GRASS

GRAVEL

C

H

/

L

DENSE

VEGETATION

C
w

TARMAC

GRASS

ROUGH

GROUND

TREES/

VEGETATION

GRASS

DENSE

VEGETATION

GRASS

I
/
R

C

H

/

L

ROUGH

GROUND

ROUGH

GROUND

TREES/

VEGETATION

TREES/

VEGETATION

I

/

R

I
/
R

CONC

TREES/

VEGETATION

TREES/

VEGETATION

TREES/

VEGETATION

ROUGH

GROUND

TARMAC

TARMAC

SAPLINGS

DENSE

VEGETATION

grass

ENTRANCE TO VAULT

C.H.KENWORTHY

I/R

C
/
B

I/R

CH/L

149.53

149.67

149.77

149.86

149.79

152.13

152.13

152.11

151.66

151.55

151.37

151.24

151.18

150.88

150.56

150.40

149.94

1
4
8
.
9
6

1
4
8
.
9
4

1
4
8
.
9
4

1
4
9
.
0
6

1
4
8
.
8
2

1
4
9
.
0
2

1
4
9
.
3
3

149.17

G0.9

G0.9

G0.8

MG

MG

149.38149.14

148.98148.77

148.70148.58148.43148.33

148.27

148.20

148.32

148.39 148.46 148.54 148.66

148.80 148.89 149.15

149.31 149.42

149.10148.96148.83

148.64148.57

148.52148.47

148.39

NP

148.53 148.58 148.72

G

148.29

148.22

148.39

148.60

148.77

148.92

149.01

1
4
9
.
5
5

1
4
9
.
5
0

1
4
9
.
4
3

1

4

9

.

4

1

1

4

9

.

3

8

1

4

9

.

2

0

1

4

9

.

0

9

148.98

148.86148.68148.56

148.41

148.30

148.27

1

4

8

.1

7

1

4

8

.3

2

148.39

148.41 148.54

148.68 148.79 148.97 149.08

1

4

9

.

1

9

1

4

9

.

3

5

1

4

9

.

4

9

1

4

9

.

5

5

1
4
9
.
6
0

1
4
9
.
6
4

1
4
9
.
6
4

149.08149.01

148.84

148.72

148.62

148.49

1

4

8

.3

8

NP

IC

CL148.33

G

148.29

1
4
9
.
0
0

1
4
8
.
9
1

1
4
8
.
8
7

1

4

8

.

9

4

1
4
8
.
9
7

149.75

149.74

149.67

148.35

148.17

148.09

148.07

148.17

148.14

148.27

148.29

148.55

148.57

148.63

148.65

148.66

148.90

STUMP

STUMP

148.27

1
4
8
.
7
6

1

4

8

.
6

3

1
4
8
.
3
2

1

4

8

.

2

3

1

4

8

.

1

9

1

4

8

.

1

6

1

4

8

.

1

3

1

4

8

.

0

8

1

4

8

.

0

2

1

4

8

.

0

1

1

4

8

.

1

1

1

4

8

.

1

1

1

4

8

.

1

0

1

4

8

.

1

4

1

4

8

.

1

5

1

4

8

.

1

6

1

4

8

.
2

3

1

4

8

.

4

4

1

4

8

.

8

4

1

4

8

.

5

1

1

4

8

.

3

4

1

4

8

.
3

9

1

4

8

.

3

4

148.32

1

4

8

.

3

0

1
4
8
.
4
6

1

4

8

.

5

9

1

4

8

.

7

1

1

4

8

.5

9

1
4
9
.
4
6

149.37

1

4

9

.

5

3

1

4

9

.

6

7

1

4

9

.

6

7

148.24

148.15

148.09

148.26

148.43

1
4
9

.
0
7

149.32

149.03

1
4
8
.
8
7

1
4
9
.
0
0

1
4
8
.
8
6

1
4
8
.
9
0

1
4
8
.
8
6

1
4
8
.
7
9

1
4
8
.
8
4

1

4

9

.

2

1

1

4

9

.

6

0

1

5

0

.

3

7

1

5

1

.

1

9

1

5

1

.

5

9

1

5

2

.

0

5

1

5

2

.

2

3

1

5

2

.

2

1

1

5

1

.

8

4

1

5

0

.

9

8

1

5

0

.

1

8

1

4

9

.

8

9

1

4

9

.

4

2

1

4

9

.

4

1

1

4

9

.

5

6

1

4

9

.

7

1

1

4

9

.

8

5

1

5

0

.

0

4

1

5

0

.
0

9

MH

CL150.16

1

5

0

.

1

7

1

5

0

.

2

4

1

5

0

.

3

1

1

5

0

.

4

7

1

5

0

.

5

7

1

5

0

.

7

6

1

5

0

.

8

7

1

5

1

.

0

0

1

5

1

.

1

4

1

5

1

.

3

0

1

5

1

.

4

0

1

5

1

.

5

7

152.51

152.84

153.01

153.12

153.22

153.42

153.48

153.43

153.33

153.41

153.30

153.17

153.12

153.04

152.74

1

5

2

.5

6

1

5

2

.

1

0

1

5

1

.

7

6

150.35

149.65

PT152.46

152.53

151.17

1

5

1

.

2

4

1

5

1

.

6

9

1

5

2

.

2

2

1

5

2

.

3

6

152.42

152.32

152.21

1

5

2

.1

8

1

5

1

.

9

7

1

5

1

.

7

5

1

5

0

.

9

8

1

5

0

.
1

1

152.4
8

1
5
2
.
4
7

1

5

2

.
1

6

1

5

1

.
2

8

1

5

1

.

2

8

1

5

1

.

5

4

1

5

2

.

1

0

1

5

2

.

4

2

1

5

2

.

3

3

1

5

1

.

7

9

1

5

1

.

4

4

151.30

1

5

1

.
4

0

1

5

2

.

5

1

152.49

152.50

1
5
1
.
2
6

151.24

151.15

151.31

151.15

151.04

150.87

150.49

150.33

150.18

150.05

150.07

150.06 150.29

150.38

150.75

150.82

150.89

150.96

151.00

151.02

150.95

150.90

150.81

150.89

150.89

150.71

150.76

150.48

150.26

150.08

149.87

149.91

149.71

149.72

150.12

150.36

150.49

150.57

150.76

150.79

150.76

150.89

150.98

150.88

150.79

150.63

150.60

150.49

150.35

150.33

150.10

149.94

149.88

150.17

150.18

150.49

150.53

150.62

150.69

150.85

150.68

150.50

150.52

150.13

150.01

149.68

MH

MH

CL149.21

CL149.29

149.32

149.46

1

4

9

.
6

0

1
4
9

.
4

6

1
4
9
.
4
1

1
4
9
.
5
5

1
4
9
.
7
2

1
4
9
.
8
6

1
5
0
.
0
0

1

5

0

.

0

4

1

5

0

.

1

4

1

5

0

.

2

6

1

5

0

.

3

5

150.44

1

5

0

.

2

3

1

5

0

.
0

7

1
5
0
.
0
1

1
4
9
.
9
1

1
4
9
.
7
7

1
4
9
.
6
5

LP

MG

149.3

1

149.60

149.96

150.11

150.33

150.33 150.39

1

5

0

.6

0

1

5

0

.6

8

1

5

0

.9

2

152.53

1
5
2
.
5
4

1
5
2
.
2
0

1
5
1
.
3
8

1
5
1
.
3
0

1
5
1
.
2
2

1
5
1
.
2
0

1
5
1
.
2
7

1
5
1
.
2
2

1
5
1
.
2
5

1
5
1
.
1
7

1

5

1

.

2

4

151.70

151.85

152.09 1
5
2
.
5
6

1
5
2
.
4
6

152.54

150.9
3

1
5
0
.
8
1

150.8
1

1
5
0
.
9
3

150.90

SAP

SAP

SAP

SAP

SAP

SAP

G1.0

SAP

MH

MH

MH

CL150.51

CL150.50

CL150.37

1

5

0

.

1

8

1

5

0

.1

4

150.22

150.05

149.95

149.80

149.67

149.47

149.29

149.24

149.06

MG G0.3

G0.4

G0.5

G0.5

G0.5

G0.5

MG

G0.7

MG

DC1

DC2

DC3

DC4

DC5

DC6

EIC

148.59

G0.4

1
4

Pond

2

8

4

FERN LODGE DRIVE

Fern Lodge

1
3
6

P
a
th

 (u
m

)

Sta

P
a
th

148.5m

147.4m

Ordnance Survey (c) Crown Copyright 2022. All rights reserved. Licence number 100022432

Q
U

E
E

N
S

 
R

O
A

D

Job:

Client:

Drawing title:

Drawing Number:

Scale:

Date:

Drawn by/ checked by:

Revision:

(Job number)

nicol thomas

architects     project managers     construction cost consultants     CDM co-ordinators

Registered in England and Wales. Reg No. 2140639

Quality Assured to BS EN ISO 9001:1994 Certificate Number GB 4723

Heyside House  Blackshaw Lane   Heyside   Royton   Oldham   OL2 6NS

t:01706 290088  f:01706 290099 e:oldham@nicolthomas.com

Also at Birmingham (Registered office)

Do not scale from this drawing. All dimensions must be checked and verified before

preparing production drawings or commencing works. This drawing and its design is the

copyright of Nicol Thomas Ltd and may not be reproduced in any form whatsoever

without their prior express written consent.

Revision Date Details

nicol thomas

Wiggett Construction

Fern Lodge Drive, Ashton-Under-Lyne

Location Plan

M4852 (PL) 100

1:1250 @ A4

June 22

RW

N

Page 27

AutoCAD SHX Text
394950E

AutoCAD SHX Text_1
394950E

AutoCAD SHX Text_2
395000E

AutoCAD SHX Text_3
395000E

AutoCAD SHX Text_4
395050E

AutoCAD SHX Text_5
395050E

AutoCAD SHX Text_6
395100E

AutoCAD SHX Text_7
395100E

AutoCAD SHX Text_8
400050N

AutoCAD SHX Text_9
400050N

AutoCAD SHX Text_10
400100N

AutoCAD SHX Text_11
400100N

AutoCAD SHX Text_12
400150N

AutoCAD SHX Text_13
400150N



This page is intentionally left blank



Turfed lawn area

Tarmac parking space

Hardstanding for storage of

Low level shrub planting

Concrete paving flags

Turfed lawn area

Proposed tree planting

Tarmac highway

Refer to Engineer's drawings for details of any retaining.

External Works Legend

Block paved parking space

I\R

I\R

C\B

I\R

C\B

TA
R

M
AC

GRASS

TARMAC

TARMAC

C/B

FERN LODGE DRIVE

TARMAC
TARMAC

TA
RMAC

GRASS

GRASS

GRASS

CH
/L

DENSE
VEGETATION

C
w

TARMAC

GRASS

ROUGH
GROUND

TREES/
VEGETATION

GRASS

DENSE
VEGETATION

GRASS

I/R

CH/L

ROUGH
GROUND

ROUGH
GROUND

TREES/
VEGETATION

TREES/
VEGETATION

I/R

I/R

CONC

TREES/
VEGETATION

TREES/
VEGETATION

TREES/
VEGETATION

ROUGH
GROUND

TARMAC

TARMAC

SAPLINGS

DENSE
VEGETATION

grass

ENTRANCE TO VAULT
C.H.KENWORTHY

I/R

C
/B

I/R

CH/L

149.53

149.67

149.77

149.86

149.79

152.13
152.13

152.11

151.66
151.55

151.37
151.24

151.18

150.88

150.56

150.40

149.94

148.96

148.94

148.94
149.06

148.82
149.02

149.33

149.17

G0.9
G0.9

G0.8

MG

MG

149.38149.14148.98148.77148.70148.58148.43
148.54 148.66 148.80 148.89 149.15 149.31 149.42

149.10148.96148.83148.64148.57
148.58 148.72

148.39 148.60 148.77 148.92
149.01

149.55
149.50

149.43

149.41

149.38

149.20

149.09
148.98148.86148.68148.56148.41

148.54 148.68 148.79 148.97 149.08 149.19

149.35

149.49

149.55

149.60
149.64

149.64

149.08149.01148.84148.72148.62

149.00
148.91

148.87

14
8.9

4

148.97149.75

149.74

149.67

148.27

148.29 148.55

148.57

148.63

148.65

148.66

148.90

STUMP

STUMP

148.27

148.76

14
8.

63

14
8.

32

14
8.

23

148.19

148.16

14
8.1

0
148.14

148.15

14
8.1

6

14
8.

23

14
8.

44

14
8.

84

148.51

14
8.

34

148.39

148.34

148.32 148.30

14
8.

46

148.59

148.71

148.59

149.46

149.37 14
9.

53

149.67

149.67

148.24

148.15

148.09
148.26

148.43

149.07 149.32
149.0314

8.
87

14
9.

00

14
8.

86
14

8.
90

14
8.

86
14

8.
79

14
8.

84 14
9.

21

14
9.

60

15
0.3

7

15
1.1

9

15
1.5

9

15
1.8

4

15
0.9

8

15
0.1

8

14
9.

89

14
9.

42

149.41

149.56

149.71

149.85

150.04

15
0.

09

MH
CL150.16

150.17

150.24

150.31

150.47

150.57

150.76

150.87

151.00

151.14

151.30

151.40

151.57

153.48 153.43

153.33

153.41
153.30

153.17

153.12

153.04

152.74
152.56

15
2.1

0

15
1.7

6

150.35

149.65

PT152.46

152.53

151.17

151.24

151.69

152.22

152.36

152.42

152.32

152.21152.18

151.97

15
1.

75

15
0.

98

15
0.

11

152.48

15
2.

47

152.16
151.28

151.28

151.54

152.10

152.42
152.33

151.79

151.44
151.30

151.40

15
2.5

1

152.49
152.50

151.26

151.24

151.15

151.31

151.15
151.04

150.87

150.49150.33
150.18

150.05

150.07 150.06 150.29
150.38

150.75

150.82

150.89

150.96

151.00
151.02

150.95150.90

150.81

150.89

150.89
150.71

150.76

150.48
150.26

150.08
149.87

149.91

149.71

149.72
150.12 150.36

150.49 150.57

150.76
150.79

150.76
150.89

150.98

150.88

150.79

150.63
150.60

150.49
150.35

150.33

150.10149.94

149.88 150.17

150.18
150.49

150.53

150.62

150.69 150.85

150.68

150.50
150.52

150.13

150.01149.68
MH

MH

CL149.21

CL149.29

149.32 149.46 149.60

14
9.

46

149.41

149.55

149.72

149.86

150.00
150.04

150.14

150.26

150.35

150.44150.23

150.07
150.01

149.91

149.77

149.65

LP

MG

149.31

149.60 149.96
150.11

150.33 150.33 150.39
150.60

150.68

150.92

152.53

152.54
152.20

151.38
151.30

151.22

151.20
151.27

151.22
151.25

151.17
151.24

151.70
151.85

152.09 152.56
152.46

152.54

150.93

150.81

150.81

150.93

150.90

SAP
SAP

SAP

SAP

SAP

SAP

G1.0

SAP

MH

MH
MH

CL150.51

CL150.50CL150.37 15
0.1

8

150.14

150.22

150.05

149.95

149.80

149.67

149.47

149.29

149.24

149.06

MG G0.3 G0.4

G0.5

G0.5

G0.5

G0.5

MG

G0.7

MG

DC2

DC3

DC4

DC5

DC6

EIC
148.59

G0.4

Proposed access
to pond

1

2

D D

1

1
C

A

29 29 30 30 31 31 32

New 5.5m
Access Road

Existing Sewers

BANKING

D D

29B

B

B

B

30

31

32

B

B

A

C

E

E

E

E

E

E

B B B B

D

D

15237

14800

3

4

5

6

7 8 9 10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19202122232425262728

32

BB

BB
BB

14323

2 2

3 3

4

4

5 5

6

6

7

7

10 10

99

11

11

12

12

13

13

14

14

15

15

16

16

17

17

18

18

19 19

20 20

21 21

22222323242425252626

2727

28

28

15226

8 8

22841

New 4.8m
Access Road 14939

SCHEDULE OF ACCOMMODATION

Ref Accommodation Area sqm No
A 3 bedroom 5 person 92 2
B 3 bedroom 5 person (3 storey) 100 16
C 3 bedroom 5 person house 92 2
D 4 bedroom 7 person (2.5 storey) 129 6
E 4 bedroom 7 person (3 storey) 126 6

TOTAL 3498 32
Car parking generally 200%

Site Area 0.74Ha
Density 43 dwellings/Ha

N

Site Layout Fern Lodge Drive
Ashton-Under-Lyne

nicol thomas
architects     project managers     construction cost consultants     CDM co-ordinators
Registered in England and Wales. Reg No. 2140639
Quality Assured to BS EN ISO 9001:1994 Certificate Number GB 4723

Heyside House  Blackshaw Lane   Heyside   Royton   Oldham   OL2 6NS
t:01706 290088  f:01706 290099 e:oldham@nicolthomas.com

Also at Birmingham (Registered office)

Do not scale from this drawing. All dimensions must be checked and verified before
preparing production drawings or commencing works. This drawing and its design is the
copyright of Nicol Thomas Ltd and may not be reproduced in any form whatsoever
without their prior express written consent.

Revision Date Details

nicol thomas
Job:
Client:

Drawing title:

Drawing Number:

Scale:
Date:
Drawn by/ checked by:

Revision:
(Job number)

Wiggett Construction
Fern Lodge Drive, Ashton-Under-Lyne
Site Layout V2

M4852 (PL) 10 C
1:250 @ A1
Nov 22
RW 

A 10.11.22 Amendments to suit Wiggett comments.
B 24.11.22 Amendments to plots 7-12 to suit Wiggett comments.
C 06.01.23 Amendments to highway width to suit Planner's comments.

P
age 29



T
his page is intentionally left blank



R 01

R 02

R 03

R 04

R 05

R 06

R 07

R 08

R 09

S/S

W.C.

F/F

HALL
DINING

KITCHEN

B

LOUNGE

R 01

R 02

R 03

R 04

R 05

R 06

R 07

R 08

R 09

S/S

W.C.

F/F

HALL
DINING

KITCHEN

B

LOUNGE

SVPSVP SVP

45.0°

1   Roof Tiles TBC

2   Red multi facing brickwork TBC

3 UPVC window frames.  Colour Anthracite

4   UPVC rainwater goods.  Colour Black

5   UPVC fascias and soffits.  Colour Black

NB All materials/colours to be approved by LA

Obscure glazing to all bathroom / WC windows and gable
windows where required for privacy

Materials Legend

R 02

R 03

R 04

R 05

R 06

R 09

R 10

R 11

R 12R 13

BATHROOM

BEDROOM 2

R 01

STORE

BEDROOM 3

R 02

R 03

R 04

R 05

R 06

R 09

R 10

R 11

R 12 R 13

BATHROOM

BEDROOM 2

R 01

STORE

BEDROOM 3

SVPSVP SVP

R 09

R 10

R 11

R 12R 13

EN-SUITE

STORE / OFFICE

BEDROOM 1

SVPSVP SVP

B-HEAD
STORE

1800mm

2000mm

R 09

R 10

R 11

R 12 R 13

EN-SUITE

STORE / OFFICE

BEDROOM 1

B-HEAD
STORE

1800mm

2000mm

Obscure
glazing

Obscure
glazing

45.0°

Obscure
glazing

Obscure
glazing

nicol thomas
architects     project managers     construction cost consultants     CDM co-ordinators
Registered in England and Wales. Reg No. 2140639
Quality Assured to BS EN ISO 9001:1994 Certificate Number GB 4723

Heyside House  Blackshaw Lane   Heyside   Royton   Oldham   OL2 6NS
t:01706 290088  f:01706 290099 e:oldham@nicolthomas.com

Also at Birmingham (Registered office)

Do not scale from this drawing. All dimensions must be checked and verified before
preparing production drawings or commencing works. This drawing and its design is the
copyright of Nicol Thomas Ltd and may not be reproduced in any form whatsoever
without their prior express written consent.

Revision Date Details

nicol thomas
Job:
Client:

Drawing title:

Drawing Number:

Scale:
Date:
Drawn by/ checked by:

Revision:
(Job number)

Wiggett Construction
Fern Lodge Drive, Ashton-Under-Lyne
House Type B

M4852 (PL) 04 C
1:50 @ A1
May 2022
RW

House Type B
3 bed 5 person house @ 100sqm

Fern Lodge Drive
Ashton-Under-Lyne

Ground Floor Plan

First Floor Plan

Front Elevation

1

2

3

4

5

Second Floor Plan

Rear Elevation

Gable Elevations
Scale 1:100

A May 22 Amendments to suit comments from Wiggett's sales team.
B May 22 Amendments to suit comments from Wiggett's sales team.

Front Elevation Plots 5-6, 9-10
Scale 1:100

C June 22 Canopy removed at request of Wiggett's.

Window to plots
25 and 32 only

Window to plots
25 and 32 only

Window to plots
25 and 32 only

Window to plots
25 and 32 only

Windows added to gable of plots 25 and 32 for natural surveillance.

P
age 31



T
his page is intentionally left blank



R 01

R 02

R 03

R 04

R 05

R 06

R 07

R 08

HALL

LOUNGE

W.C.

KITCHEN/DINING

F/F

S/S

R 01

R 02

R 03

R 04

R 05

R 06

R 07

R 08

HALL

LOUNGE

W.C.

KITCHEN/DINING

F/F

S/S

SVP

B B

SVP

STORE

BEDROOM 4BEDROOM 2

BEDROOM 3

BATHROOM

R 01

R 02

R 03

R 04

R 05

R 06

R 09

R 10

R 11

R 12

R 13

LANDING

STORE

BEDROOM 4BEDROOM 2

BEDROOM 3

BATHROOM

R 01

R 02

R 03

R 04

R 05

R 06

R 09

R 10

R 11

R 12

R 13

LANDING

R 08

R 09

R 10

R 11

R 12

R 13

BEDROOM 1

EN-SUITE

STORE

ROOF VOID

1500mm

1800mm

1800mm

2000mm

2000mm

R 08

R 09

R 10

R 11

R 12

R 13

BEDROOM 1

EN-SUITE

STORE

ROOF VOID

1500mm

1800mm

1800mm

2000mm

2000mm

obscure
glazing

35.0°

1   Roof Tiles TBC

2   Red multi facing brickwork TBC

3 UPVC window frames.  Colour Anthracite

4   UPVC rainwater goods.  Colour Black

5   UPVC fascias and soffits.  Colour Black

NB All materials/colours to be approved by LA

Obscure glazing to all bathroom / WC windows and gable
windows where required for privacy

Materials Legend

obscure
glazing

35
.0

°

nicol thomas
architects     project managers     construction cost consultants     CDM co-ordinators
Registered in England and Wales. Reg No. 2140639
Quality Assured to BS EN ISO 9001:1994 Certificate Number GB 4723

Heyside House  Blackshaw Lane   Heyside   Royton   Oldham   OL2 6NS
t:01706 290088  f:01706 290099 e:oldham@nicolthomas.com

Also at Birmingham (Registered office)

Do not scale from this drawing. All dimensions must be checked and verified before
preparing production drawings or commencing works. This drawing and its design is the
copyright of Nicol Thomas Ltd and may not be reproduced in any form whatsoever
without their prior express written consent.

Revision Date Details

nicol thomas
Job:
Client:

Drawing title:

Drawing Number:

Scale:
Date:
Drawn by/ checked by:

Revision:
(Job number)

Wiggett Construction
Fern Lodge Drive, Ashton-Under-Lyne
House Type D

M4852 (PL) 05 B
1:50 @ A1
May 2022
RW

House Type D
4 bed 7 person house @ 129sqm

Fern Lodge Drive
Ashton-Under-Lyne

Ground Floor Plan

First Floor Plan Second Floor Plan

Front Elevation

1

Gable Elevations
Scale 1:100

23

4

5

Rear Elevation

A May 22 Amendments to suit comments from Wiggett's sales team.
B May 22 Amendments to suit comments from Wiggett's sales team.

P
age 33



T
his page is intentionally left blank



R 06

R 05

R 04

R 03

R 02

R 01

SVP

W.C.

GARAGE

HALL

F/F

B

R 06

R 05

R 04

R 03

R 02

R 01

SVP

F/F

B

GARAGE

HALL

W.C.

DINING KITCHENDINING KITCHEN

Obscure
glazing

Obscure
glazing

Obscure
glazing

Obscure
glazing

Obscure
glazing

Obscure
glazing

45.0°

35.0°

1   Roof Tiles TBC

2   Red multi facing brickwork TBC

3 UPVC window frames.  Colour Anthracite

4   UPVC rainwater goods.  Colour Black

5   UPVC fascias and soffits.  Colour Black

NB All materials/colours to be approved by LA

Obscure glazing to all bathroom / WC windows and gable
windows where required for privacy

Materials Legend

R 05

R 04

R 03

R 02

R 01

SVP

EN-SUITE

BEDROOM 1

BALCONY

R 09

R 10

R 11

R 13 R 12

R 05

R 04

R 03

R 02

R 01

SVP

EN-SUITE

R 09

R 10

R 11

R 12R 13

LOUNGE

BEDROOM 1

BALCONY

LOUNGE

LANDING LANDING

R 05

SVP

BATHROOM

BEDROOM 2

R 09

R 10

R 11

R 12R 13

LANDING

BEDROOM 4

R 06

R 07

R 08

STORE

BEDROOM 3

R 05

SVP

BATHROOM

BEDROOM 2

R 09

R 10

R 11

R 12R 13

LANDING

BEDROOM 4

R 06

R 07

R 08

STORE

BEDROOM 3

45.0°

Obscure
glazing

Obscure
glazing

Obscure
glazing

Obscure
glazing

Obscure
glazing

Obscure
glazing

nicol thomas
architects     project managers     construction cost consultants     CDM co-ordinators
Registered in England and Wales. Reg No. 2140639
Quality Assured to BS EN ISO 9001:1994 Certificate Number GB 4723

Heyside House  Blackshaw Lane   Heyside   Royton   Oldham   OL2 6NS
t:01706 290088  f:01706 290099 e:oldham@nicolthomas.com

Also at Birmingham (Registered office)

Do not scale from this drawing. All dimensions must be checked and verified before
preparing production drawings or commencing works. This drawing and its design is the
copyright of Nicol Thomas Ltd and may not be reproduced in any form whatsoever
without their prior express written consent.

Revision Date Details

nicol thomas
Job:
Client:

Drawing title:

Drawing Number:

Scale:
Date:
Drawn by/ checked by:

Revision:
(Job number)

Wiggett Construction
Fern Lodge Drive, Ashton-Under-Lyne
House Type E

M4852 (PL) 06 B
1:50 @ A1
May 2022
RW

House Type E
4 bed 7 person house @ 126sqm

Fern Lodge Drive
Ashton-Under-Lyne

Ground Floor Plan

First Floor Plan Second Floor Plan

Front Elevation

1

Gable
Elevations

2

3

4

5

Rear Elevation

A May 22 Amendments to suit comments from Wiggett's sales team.

Front Elevation Plots 7-8
Scale 1:100

B May 22 Amendments to suit comments from Wiggett's sales team.

P
age 35



T
his page is intentionally left blank



22/00818/FUL 

New residential development of 32 no units consisting of 18no 3 bedroom houses and 14no 4 bedroom houses with associated car 
parking and landscaping. 

Land at the end of Fern Lodge Drive, Ashton-under-Lyne 

 

 Historic Map Dated: 1922          Aerial Photograph Dated: 1949 

P
age 37



T
his page is intentionally left blank



Application Number 22/00818/FUL  

New residential development of 32 no units consisting of 18no 3 bedroom houses and 
14no 4 bedroom houses with associated car parking and landscaping. 

 

Photo 1: Aerial view of the site. 

 

Photo 2: 3D Image looking north. 

 

Page 39



Photo 3: View looking down Fern Lodge Drive. 

 

 

Photo 4: View within the site. 

 

Page 40



Application Number: 22/01208/FUL 
 
Proposal: Single storey building (with mezzanine floor) for automotive workshop 

college courses, including landscaping and access, following 
demolition of existing Newton Building. 

 
Site:  Tameside College of Technology, Beaufort Road, Ashton-under-Lyne 
 
Applicant:   Tameside College 
 
Recommendation:  Grant planning permission, subject to conditions. 
 
Reason for Report: A Speakers Panel decision is required because the application 

constitutes a major development. 
 
Background Papers: The planning application documents are background papers to the 

report.  They are open to inspection in accordance with Section 100D 
of the Local Government Act 1972. 

 
 
1. SITE & SURROUNDINGS 
 
1.1 The application relates to a development at Tameside College’s Beaufort Road Campus.  

The site is located approximately 1 kilometres (km) east of Ashton town centre.  The site has 
been occupied by the college for approximately 50 years.  The campus covers an area of 
around 4.5 hectares and comprises a series of interlinked buildings set within areas of car 
parking and landscaping.  The boundaries are defined mainly by residential streets which 
include Beaufort Road to the north, Dorset Street to the east and Stamford Street East to the 
south.  The railway line runs within a cutting along the western boundary. 

 
1.2 The main vehicle and pedestrian access to the college is provided by Beaufort Road via two 

established accesses, one for drop off and pick up and visitor parking, whilst the other 
provides access to the staff and student car park.  A third entrance is located on Dorset 
Street.  Access is also available from Stamford Street East. 

 
1.3 The college offers a wide curriculum from its campus including vocational courses within the 

trade and service industries.  There is a range of buildings from single storey older buildings 
to the Victoria and recently constructed six storey Advanced Technology Centre (ATC) 
building; and the new Construction Skills Centre. 

 
 
2. PROPOSAL 
 
2.1 This full application seeks planning permission for the demolition of the existing Newton 

Building, and its replacement with a single storey building, including mezzanine floor, for 
automotive workshop college courses. 
 

2.2 The building would have a rectangular footprint which would measure approximately 40 
metres (m) by 20m.  The ridge height of the building would be two storey (single with a 
mezzanine floor internally), standing at 8.2m. 
 

2.3 The building elevations would consist primarily of a metal cladding material.  The lower plinth 
would consist of deep/course cladding, and the upper would be fine/shallow.  The elevations 
would be broken up with large areas of glazing and use of ‘Kalwall’ translucent façade, which 
would continue vertically into the parapet. 
 

Page 41

Agenda Item 4b



2.4 Internally, the building would consist of a large scale car garage workshop, with ancillary 
facilities, to provide a learning environment for students enrolled on automotive workshop 
courses.  Some external workshop space would be provided beneath a canopy area. 
 

2.5 As the building footprint would be smaller than the one it replaces, the remaining area would 
be regraded with grass seed.  The submitted plans state that this may be a temporary 
measure, and may be redeveloped in a future college proposal. 
 

2.6 The site currently benefits from 377 car parking spaces, of which 17 are designated for 
disabled users.  The development proposes to reconfigure the site and reduce the number 
of car parking spaces by 32, with 345 remaining. 

 
 
3. PLANNING HISTORY 
 
3.1 There are numerous applications recorded at the site ranging from minor works to major 

extensions.  The site history relevant to this application is as follows: 
 

3.2 23/00061/CPUD - Certificate of proposed lawful development for the extension and alteration 
of an existing college building (Schedule 2, Part 7, Class M of the General Permitted 
Development Order (2015) as amended) – Granted March 2023. 
 

3.3 23/00017/NDM - Demolition of brickwork, gas & plumbing and fabrication workshop sheds, 
which occupy an area to the south of the Tameside College Campus facing the railway line, 
away from Beaufort Road and other public highways – Approved February 2023. 
 

3.4 18/01101/FUL – Erection of proposed new two storey (with mezzanine) Construction Skills 
Centre with associated landscape works.  Enabling works include the demolition of existing 
buildings and relocation of the existing refectory – Approved March 2019. 
 

3.5 14/00185/FUL – Erection of a six storey college building involving the demolition of existing 
three storey theatre building and sports therapy building – Approved April 2014. 
 

3.6 07/00607/FUL – Erection of single storey workshop/teaching area – Approved June 2007. 
 

3.7 06/00233/FUL – Erection of single storey classroom – Approved April 2006. 
 

3.8 05/00785/FUL – Single storey workshop – Approved July 2005. 
 
 
4. PLANNING POLICY 
 

National Planning Policy Framework 
4.1 Paragraph 9 of the National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) states that planning 

decisions should play an active role in guiding development towards sustainable solutions, 
but in doing so should take local circumstances into account to reflect the character, needs 
and opportunities of each area. 

 
4.2 Paragraph 11 states that planning decisions should apply a presumption in favour of 

sustainable development.  This means approving development proposals that accord with an 
up-to-date development plan without delay (as per section 38(6) of the Planning and 
Compulsory Purchase Act 2004).  However, where the development plan is absent, silent or 
out of date, planning permission should be granted unless the application of policies in the 
NPPF that protects areas or assets of particular importance, provides a clear reason for 
refusing the development proposed; or any adverse impacts of doing so would significantly 
and demonstrably outweigh the benefits, when assessed against the policies in the NPPF 
taken as a whole. 

Page 42



 
4.3 Paragraph 12 of the NPPF clarifies that the presumption in favour of sustainable development 

does not change the statutory status of the development plan as the starting point for decision 
making.  Where a planning application conflicts with an up-to-date development plan, 
permission should not normally be granted.  Local planning authorities may take decisions 
that depart from an up-to-date development plan, but only if material considerations in a 
particular case indicate that the plan should not be followed.  

 
Development Plan 

4.4 The adopted development plan is the Tameside Unitary Development Plan (2004) and the 
Greater Manchester Joint Waste Development Plan Document (2012). 

 
Tameside Unitary Development Plan (2004) 
 

4.5 Part 1 Policies 
• 1.1: Capturing Quality Jobs for Tameside People; 
• 1.3: Creating a Cleaner and Greener Environment; 
• 1.5: Following the Principles of Sustainable Development; 
• 1.6:  Securing Urban Regeneration;  
• 1.9: Maintaining Local Access to Employment and Services; 
• 1:10: Protecting and Enhancing the Natural Environment; 
• 1:11: Conserving Built Heritage and Retaining Local Identity; 
• 1.12: Ensuring an Accessible, Safe and Healthy Environment. 

 
4.6 Part 2 Policies 

• C1: Townscape and Urban Form 
• H2: Unallocated Sites 
• MW11: Contaminated Land 
• MW12: Control of Pollution 
• N3: Nature Conservation Factors 
• N4: Trees and Woodland 
• N5: Trees Within Development Sites 
• N7: Protected Species 
• OL10: Landscape Quality and Character 
• T1: Highway Improvement and Traffic Management 
• T7: Cycling 
• T8: Walking 
• T10: Parking  
• U3: Water Services for Developments 
• U4: Flood Prevention 
• U5: Energy Efficiency 

 
Places for Everyone 

4.7 The Places for Everyone Joint Development Plan Document was published in August 2021. 
It was submitted to the Secretary of State in February 2022 and inspectors are appointed to 
carry out an independent examination.  It is a joint plan covering nine of the ten Greater 
Manchester districts, including Tameside, and is intended to provide the overarching 
framework to strategically manage growth across the boroughs. 
 

4.8 Paragraph 48 in the NPPF states that local planning authorities may give weight to relevant 
policies in emerging plans according to: the stage of preparation of the emerging plan (the 
more advanced its preparation, the greater weight may be given); the extent to which there 
are unresolved objections (the less significant, the greater the weight that may be given); and 
the degree of consistency of the relevant policies in the emerging plan to the NPPF (the 
closer the policies in the emerging plan to the policies in the NPPF, the greater the weight 
that may be given). 

Page 43



 
4.9 Whilst Places for Everyone has been published and submitted, a number of representations 

have been received objecting to policies, and so in accordance with paragraph 48 of the 
NPPF, only very limited weight can be given to those policies at this time. 

 
Other Considerations 

4.10 The application has been considered having regard to Article 1 of the First Protocol of the 
Human Rights Act 1998, which sets out a person’s rights to the peaceful enjoyment of 
property and Article 8 of the Convention of the same Act which sets out his/her rights in 
respect for private and family life and for the home.  Officers consider that the proposed 
development would not be contrary to the provisions of the above Articles in respect of the 
human rights of surrounding residents/occupiers. 

 
4.11 The application has been considered in accordance with the Tameside One Equality Scheme 

(2018-22), which seeks to prevent unlawful discrimination, promote equality of opportunity 
and good relations between people in a diverse community.  In this case the proposed 
development is not anticipated to have any potential impact from an equality perspective. 

 
 
5. PUBLICITY CARRIED OUT 
 
5.1 In accordance with the requirements of the Town and Country Planning (Development 

Management Procedure) (England) Order 2015 and the Council’s adopted Statement of 
Community Involvement the application has been advertised as a major development by 
neighbour notification letter, display of a site notice; and advertisement in the local press. 

 
 
6. SUMMARY OF THIRD PARTY RESPONSES 
 
6.1 In response to the neighbour notification letters, there was one letter of objection submitted.  

The concerns raised within the letter of objection is summarised below: 
 

• The current motor workshops building should be considered for listing; 
• The mezzanine floor is unacceptable, raising the overall roof height of the building by 

two metres.  This would unacceptably reduce visibility from neighbouring residential 
properties, and would reduce the level of light to these properties; 

• Semi-mature trees, rather than saplings, should be proposed, within the landscaping 
scheme; and 

• Conditions should be imposed upon demolition and construction working hours. 
 
 
7. RESPONSES FROM CONSULTEES 
 
7.1 Local Highway Authority (LHA) – No objections, subject to conditions requiring a scheme for 

secured cycle storage; car parking to be implemented; a lighting scheme; travel plan to be 
implemented; a construction environment management plan; and a highway condition 
survey. 

 
7.2 Transport for Greater Manchester (TfGM) – Notes there would be no increase in staff or 

student numbers.  Offers guidance regarding the cycle parking provision. 
 
7.3 Lead Local Flood Authority (LLFA) – Limited drainage information provided, and further 

drainage options should be investigated in more detail.  
 
7.4 United Utilities – No comments received. 
 

Page 44



7.5 Greater Manchester Ecology Unit (GMEU) – No objections.  Recommends a condition 
requiring recommendations of ecological appraisal in relation to hedgehogs and badgers, 
and submission of landscaping details.  Recommends an informative with regard to nesting 
birds. 

 
7.6 Arborist – No objections, removal of two conifers would be mitigated for within new tree 

planting proposals. 
 
7.7 Environmental Health – No objections, subject to a condition requiring restrictions on 

construction working hours, and requiring submission of any external plant and machinery. 
 
7.8 Contaminated Land – No objections, subject to conditions requiring a remediation strategy 

as necessary, and that remedial measures be implemented prior to use. 
 
7.9 Coal Authority – No objections. 
 
7.10 Network Rail – No objections. 
 
7.11 Historic England – No objections. 
 
7.12 Waste Management – No objections.  As the proposal is for a commercial use, Council waste 

collections would not apply. 
 
7.13 Designing Out Crime Officer – Advises that the development should be designed and 

constructed in accordance with Secured by Design standards. 
 
 
8. ANALYSIS 
 
8.1 The Council adopted a strategy, Vision Tameside, over 10 years ago in partnership with 

Tameside College, which was aimed at bringing greater economic prosperity through the 
improvement of learning skills within the borough.  The Vision originally provided a 
regeneration framework, centred on a three-phase development of the Tameside College 
Campus.  New learning centres in Ashton town centre were completed under Phase 1 of the 
Strategy, and the opening of Tameside One saw the completion of Phase 2.  Phase 3 of the 
Vision related to the redevelopment of parts of the Beaufort Road Campus which has been 
completed with a new Construction Skills Centre. 

 
8.2 The Beaufort Road campus has a well-established education use.  The intention of the 

Strategy above was for this site to become the primary focus for technical skills.  This 
application seeks to replace part of the existing outdated building infrastructure, and to 
replace with a new building that could accommodate automotive workshop college courses, 
to a modern educational standard. 

 
8.3 In terms of land use the proposals are directly compatible with the established educational 

use.  The college is one of the largest providers of education within the borough and the 
proposals further facilitate the delivery of their curriculum.  The further redevelopment of their 
property portfolio confirms that as an organisation they are a substantial investor and 
employer within the borough.  Investment within education is a key priority, and improvements 
to overall attainment will help to support the future development of the economy.  The 
development of a building for higher educational use is seen as appropriate within an edge 
of town centre setting, with uses being complementary to many of the services which the 
centre has to offer.  This scheme is considered to be economically and socially sustainable 
as the campus improvement will attract additional staff and students, whose presence would 
give a major and timely boost to local businesses and importantly, hopefully attract new 
investment into the town.  In addition, with public transport converging with the town centre 
in addition to immediate access to bus services, the site is highly accessible from all areas 

Page 45



within the borough as well as those beyond its boundaries.  This would be compatible with 
the economic, social and environmental elements of sustainable development. 

 
8.4 There are no land use issues raised by the proposals.  Environmental improvements would 

be secured to the existing campus which is within a highly accessible location.  As such these 
considerations should be afforded significant weight in favour, and the application is 
considered to be acceptable in principle. 

 
 
9. DESIGN & LAYOUT 
 
9.1 Policies within the UDP and NPPF are clear in their expectations of achieving high quality 

development that enhances a locality and contributes to place making objectives.  The NPPF 
emphasises that development should be refused where it fails to take opportunities available 
to improve the character and quality of an area and the way that it functions (para. 134). 

 
9.2 Policy C1 of the UDP sets out a number of aspirations for built development, and states that 

the relationship between buildings and their setting should be given particular attention in the 
design of any proposal for development. 

 
9.3 The Beaufort Road Campus fronts two highways on a prominent approach into Ashton town 

centre.  The campus comprises a collection of buildings with the oldest dating from the 
1970’s.  The site is dominated by the Victoria, ATC and Dovestone buildings, the highest of 
which stand at six storeys in height. 

 
9.4 The current Newton Building, to be demolished, has the appearance of an attractive industrial 

building, with a relatively low eaves height.  The roof of the building is of particular interest.  
Although visually interesting, the building is not listed nor is the site within a protected area, 
and it is not considered that it could be insisted the building be retained.  The replacement 
would provide enhanced teaching and learning facilities for the College, and it would be 
constructed from modern materials. 

 
9.5 The proposed building would have a rectangular footprint which would measure 

approximately 40m by 20m.  The ridge height of the building would be two storey (single with 
a mezzanine floor internally), and it would stand at 1.95m higher than the ridge height of the 
existing building. 

 
9.6 The building would be finished in a simple material palette, with primarily a metal cladding 

elevation.  The lower plinth would consist of deep/course cladding, and the upper would be 
fine/shallow.  This contrasts to add interest to the building, and to reduce the appearance of 
the scale of the building through use of differing material.  The elevations would be broken 
up with large areas of glazing and use of ‘Kalwall’ translucent façade, which continue 
vertically into the parapet.  These translucent areas show internal light and create interest 
externally. 

 
9.7 Overall, the materials, scale, massing and form of the proposal are considered to be 

sympathetic to the site and the locality, enhancing the northern edge of the site with a modern 
building.  The proposal will complement the setting of the modern Construction Skills Centre 
and reception area which sits behind the existing building, further within the site.  The 
proposal will complement the setting and will continue the redevelopment of the college site 
to create a modern learning environment. 

 
9.8 Overall, the proposed design and the use of simple, modern materials would enhance the 

area by furthering the regeneration of the site, which in turn would have a positive benefit 
upon the character and appearance of the campus. 

 
 

Page 46



10. RESIDENTIAL AMENITY 
 
10.1 The Framework seeks to ensure a good standard of amenity for all existing and future 

occupants of land and buildings. 
 
10.2 The proposed building would be situated to the northern section of the site, and the residential 

properties which would be most affected by its siting would be those properties to the 
opposite (northern) side of Beaufort Road. 

 
10.3 Although of a reduced length, the ridge height of the building would measure 1.95m higher 

than the one it would replace.  The building would be situated at least 37.0m from the front 
elevation of the nearest residential property to the opposite side of Beaufort Road, and it is 
furthermore noted that a mature hedgerow exists separating the campus from the highway, 
and the site itself is set below the level of the highway.  These factors combined, alongside 
the considerable distance of the building from the front elevation of the nearest residential 
properties, would mean that there would be no undue overbearing impacts or otherwise. 

 
10.4 The main consideration from an amenity perspective is that relating to disturbance associated 

with the construction phases of the development.  Conditions are recommended to require 
that such works are only undertaken during daytime hours, and that a Construction 
Environmental Management Plan be submitted, in order that the amenity of neighbouring 
properties is not unduly affected. 

 
10.5 In light of the above, the development is acceptable with regards to amenity considerations 

and complies with development plan policy. 
 
 
11. HIGHWAY SAFETY & ACCESSIBILITY  
 
11.1 The application has been supported by a Transport Statement and a Travel Plan.  The 

proposed development would result in an overall reduction in teaching space.  Vehicle trips 
associated with the development are expected to generate an overall decrease over the 
course of a day, due to this reduction in overall floor space.  There is no planned increase in 
numbers of staff or students.  Therefore, the impact upon the wider highway network would 
be acceptable. 

 
11.2 The proposal would result in a decrease in the total number of parking spaces at the site by 

32, with 345 remaining.  Measures proposed within the submitted Travel Plan, including an 
increase in cycle parking provision, and encouragement of use of sustainable transport 
methods, are considered acceptable to mitigate against this loss, especially when considered 
alongside the reduction in teaching floor space at the site and no increase in staff or students. 

 
11.3 Whilst it is an established educational site it remains that the location on the periphery of the 

town centre means that it is highly accessible, not only to the principal highway network but 
also a variety of transport means.  There are a number of pedestrian crossing points in the 
vicinity of the site which ensure that the site is easily accessible for those travelling on foot. 
There are frequent bus and rail connections offered from Ashton town centre and there are 
also bus stops within the immediate vicinity on Beaufort Road and Stamford Street.  The site 
is therefore considered to be highly sustainable in transport terms given the immediate 
access to means of transport. 

 
11.4 The site’s vehicular accesses would remain unchanged from those established on Beaufort 

Road.  Circulation within the site would be largely on par with the current arrangements.  
Deliveries and refuse collection to the development would also remain largely as per the 
existing arrangements.  The LHA has requested details of internal lighting, however no 
additional lighting is considered necessary in this circumstance because the existing site, car 
park and servicing areas are already lit under current arrangements. 

Page 47



 
11.5 The Local Highway Authority (LHA) has considered the impact of the development on parking 

in the vicinity of the application site, the potential impact on public transport and the impact 
of the increased traffic flows on the surrounding highway network.  The proposals are 
considered to be acceptable subject to the imposition of the recommended conditions, except 
the lighting condition for reasons set out above. 

 
 
12. LANDSCAPE AND ECOLOGY 

12.1 The application is supported with an ecological assessment, which concludes that the site 
has a low ecological value.  The buildings to be demolished have been assessed for bat 
roosting potential, no evidence of bats was found and all buildings assessed have negligible 
bat roosting potential only.  The trees have only low bat foraging potential, however those 
identified are to be retained. There was no evidence of any other protected species on the 
site.  

 
12.2 No evidence of badgers was found, however records indicate that a badger sett may be 

present within the locality, and therefore they could also forage across the site.  Although the 
risk to badgers in this location are low, the submitted ecological assessment makes 
recommendations in relation to safeguarding this species, and it is recommended that this 
assessment be subject to a condition to ensure those safeguards are implemented. 

 
12.3 No evidence of nesting birds was recorded, however it is acknowledged that the trees and 

hedge could provide habitats.  As the majority of trees and hedge are to be retained, the risk 
to nesting birds is very low and an informative is recommended advising the applicant of their 
responsibilities should any works take place near to bird nests. 

 
12.4 The Council’s Arborist notes the proposed removal of two existing conifers, and considers 

that these are adequately mitigated for by proposed tree planting within the landscaping 
scheme.  No other significant trees or vegetation would be affected by the proposals.  Greater 
Manchester Ecology Unit (GMEU) notes that the development does not appear to result in 
the loss of any vegetated habitats or features of value to wildlife, and the post development 
site would include an increase in the area of vegetated habitats, although some is marked as 
temporary for future development.  GMEU recommend that the proposed new trees be 
native, and therefore the future landscaping scheme is recommended to be subject to a 
condition. 

 
12.5 Subject to the recommendations above, the application is considered acceptable, minimising 

risks to protected species and providing a good level of landscaping.  The application is 
thereby considered acceptable in these regards. 

 
 
13. GROUND CONDITIONS 
 
13.1 A Coal Mining Risk Assessment of the site has been carried out and submitted with the 

application.  The report has been reviewed by the Coal Authority who do not identify that the 
site should be affected by any coal mining legacy issues. 

 
13.2 The Environmental Protection Unit (EPU) has reviewed the submitted ground investigation 

report, and generally accepts the conclusions drawn by the authors of the report.  Further 
investigation, including shallow soil sampling and analysis, is recommended to be 
undertaken within the soft landscaped areas in the west of the site following demolition of the 
existing building, in order to determine the risks posed to human health by soils in these 
areas, and to inform the requirements of any remedial works/measures (e.g. soil cover 
systems etc.) 

 

Page 48



13.3 It is therefore recommended that a Remediation Strategy, detailing the works and measures 
required to address any unacceptable risks posed by contamination at the site to human 
health, buildings and the environment is submitted.  It is also recommended that a 
verification/completion report demonstrating that such remedial works have been undertaken 
is also provided. 

 
13.4 The condition recommended by the EPU is considered reasonable and necessary to ensure 

that future users of the proposed development would not be exposed to potential risks caused 
by contamination at the site, and subject to its imposition the application is thereby 
considered acceptable in this regard. 

 
 
14. DRAINAGE AND FLOOD RISK 
 
14.1 The site lies within flood zone 1, which is of the least risk of flooding. 
 
14.2 The applicant has submitted a drainage strategy, which has been reviewed by the Lead Local 

Flood Authority (LLFA).  The LLFA notes that further investigation of drainage methods 
should take place, and consider that limited drainage detail has been provided. 

 
14.3 In light of these comments, it is considered appropriate to recommend a condition which 

requires a sustainable drainage scheme to be proposed and implemented.  This would be 
submitted to the LLFA for their comment before it is implemented, and would ensure that the 
development is adequately drained and flood risk reduced. 

 
14.4 Subject to imposition of the condition as set out above, the proposals would be adequately 

drained, subject to an acceptable scheme being agreed.  The proposals would therefore not 
result in a detrimental impact upon flood risk or drainage capacity, in line with the provisions 
of national and local planning policy. 

 
 
15. OTHER MATTERS 
 
15.1 The application is accompanied with a Crime Impact Statement.  This has been reviewed by 

the Greater Manchester Police Designing Out Crime Officer, who has raised no objections to 
the scheme, noting that the building presents no significant issues from a crime prevention 
perspective.  In order to further improve the overall security of the building and wider site, it 
is recommended that the development achieve Secured by Design accreditation, and that 
physical security measures are implemented, in order to achieve good levels of security and 
reduce the fear of crime for future users of the development.  The applicant is advised of this 
via an informative. 

 
15.2 The Council’s Waste Management officers note that the development is for a commercial 

(college) use, and therefore would not fall under the remit of the Council’s usual domestic 
waste services.  Waste collections would continue as per current college arrangements. 

 
 
16. CONCLUSION 
 
16.1 The proposal would contribute significantly towards the further regeneration of the Beaufort 

Road campus, creating a modern teaching and learning environment for future students.  The 
development is aligned with the Council’s economic and social aspirations of raising 
attainment within the borough and will contribute directly to the original Vision Tameside 
strategy. 

 
16.2 The design and scale of the development addresses the site in a positive manner providing 

consistency to recent developments at the campus.  The siting of the building, distanced from 

Page 49



the nearest residential properties ensure that it would not have an impact upon the levels of 
outlook or amenity of properties located outside of the boundary. 

 
16.3 The development would not cause undue impacts to highway safety, and would be 

considered acceptable subject to the imposition of conditions. 
 
16.4 There are no objections to the proposals from statutory consultees in relation to the 

proposals, which is considered an appropriate use within this established educational site. 
 
16.5 The proposal therefore complies with relevant development plan policies as well as those 

contained within the NPPF and is considered acceptable when taking into account other 
material planning considerations. 

 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 

Grant planning permission subject to the prior signing of a Section 106 Legal Agreement and 
the following conditions: 

 
1) The development hereby permitted shall be begun before the expiration of three years 

from the date of this permission. 
 

Reason: In order to comply with the provision of Section 91 of the Town and Country 
Planning Act 1990. 
 

2) The development hereby approved shall be carried out strictly in accordance with the 
plans and specifications as approved unless required by any other conditions in this 
permission. 
 
• Proposed site plan (Project B). Dwg no. TAMSEVZZGFDRA01061S06. 
• Proposed site layout vehicle tracking: pumping appliance. Dwg no. BO41470-TTE-

00-XX-TR-D-003-P01. 
• Site location plan (Project B). Dwg no. TAMSEVZZZZDRA01011P01. 
• Proposed ground floor masterplan (colour). Dwg no. TAMSEVZZ00DRA01050P01. 
• Proposed site plan (Project B). Dwg no. TAMSEVZZGFDRA01061P01. 
• MV – Level 00 - Proposed ground floor plan. Dwg no. TAMSEVZ300DRA02020P01. 
• MV – Level 01 – Proposed mezzanine floor plan. Dwg no. 

TAMSEVZ301DRA02021P01. 
• MV – Level RF – Proposed Roof Plan. Dwg no. TAMSEVZ3RFDRA02022P01. 
• MV – Proposed GA sections. Dwg no. TAMSEVZ3ZZDRA03040P01. 
• MV – Proposed GA elevations. Dwg no. TAMSEVZ3ZZDRA03060P01. 

 
Reason: In the interests of the visual amenities of the locality and in accordance with 
polices of the adopted TMBC UDP. 

 
3) With exception of site clearance and compound set up, no above ground development 

shall take place until full details of the proposed external materials have been submitted 
to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority (LPA).  The development shall 
be carried out in accordance with the approved details. 

 
Reason: In the interests of the visual amenities of the locality, in accordance with policy 
C1: Townscape and Urban Form. 
 

4) No development, other than site clearance and site compound set up, shall commence 
until a remediation strategy, detailing the works and measures required to address any 
unacceptable risks posed by contamination at the site to human health, buildings and 
the environment has been submitted to and approved in writing by the LPA.  The 

Page 50



scheme shall be implemented and verified as approved and shall include all of the 
following components unless the LPA dispenses with any such requirement specifically 
in writing: 
 
1. Supplementary ground investigation and risk assessment, in accordance with the 

recommendations made within the submitted Applied Geology Report on Ground 
Investigation at Tameside College, Beaufort Road Campus, Ashton-under-Lyne 
dated November 2022 (ref: AG3432-22-AP01).  The investigation strategy shall be 
approved in writing by the LPA prior to any investigation works commencing at the 
site. 

2. The findings of the supplementary ground investigation and risk assessments 
referred to in point (1) including all relevant soil/water analysis and ground 
gas/groundwater monitoring data.  

3. Based on the site investigations and detailed risk assessments referred to in point 
(2), an options appraisal and remediation strategy setting out full details of the 
remediation works and measures required to address any unacceptable risks 
posed by contamination and how they are to be implemented. 

4. A verification plan detailing the information that will be obtained in order to 
demonstrate the works and measures set out in the remediation strategy in point 
(3) have been fully implemented including any requirements for long term 
monitoring and maintenance. 
 

Reason: To ensure any unacceptable risks posed by contamination are appropriately 
addressed and the site is suitable for its proposed use in accordance with paragraph 
184 of the National Planning Policy Framework. 
 

5) Prior to first occupation of the development hereby approved, a verification / completion 
report demonstrating all remedial works and measures required to address all 
unacceptable risks posed by contamination and ground gas have been fully 
implemented in accordance with the approved remediation strategy shall be submitted 
to, and approved in writing by the LPA.  If during development, contamination not 
previously identified is encountered, then no further development (unless otherwise 
agreed with the LPA), shall be undertaken until a remediation strategy detailing how 
this contamination will be appropriately addressed and the remedial works verified has 
been submitted to, and approved in writing by the LPA.  The remediation strategy shall 
be fully implemented and verified as approved. 
 
The discharge of this planning condition will be given in writing by the LPA on 
completion of the development and once all information specified within this condition 
and any other requested information has been provided to the satisfaction of the LPA 
and occupation of the development shall not commence until this time unless otherwise 
agreed in writing by the LPA. 

 
Reason: To ensure any unacceptable risks posed by contamination are appropriately 
addressed and the site is suitable for its proposed use in accordance with paragraph 
184 of the National Planning Policy Framework. 

 
6) No development, other than site clearance and site compound set up, shall commence 

until a surface water drainage scheme, based on the hierarchy of drainage options in 
the National Planning Practice Guidance with evidence of an assessment of the site 
conditions, shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the LPA.  The scheme shall 
be in accordance with the Non-Statutory Technical Standards for Sustainable Drainage 
Systems (March 2015) or any subsequent replacement national standards.  The 
scheme shall demonstrate that foul and surface water shall be drained from the site via 
separate mechanisms and shall detail existing and proposed surface water run-off 
rates.  The scheme shall also include details of ongoing maintenance and management 

Page 51



arrangements.  The development shall be carried out in accordance with the approved 
details and shall be retained as such thereafter. 

 
Reason: To ensure proper drainage of the area, in accordance with Policy U3 of the 
adopted Tameside Unitary Development Plan and the National Planning Policy 
Framework. 
 

7) Prior to bringing the development into first use the car parking, servicing and turning 
facilities indicated on the approved plans shall be provided to the full satisfaction of the 
LPA and thereafter kept unobstructed and shall be retained as such thereafter.  
Driveways shall be constructed on a level which prevents displacement of materials or 
surface water onto the highway and shall be retained as such thereafter. 

 
Reason: In the interests of highway safety in accordance with policy T1 Highway 
Improvement. 

 
8) Prior to bringing the development into first use, details of secured cycle storage to be 

installed to serve the development shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the 
LPA.  The details shall include scaled plans showing the location of storage and details 
of the means of enclosure.  The secured cycle storage shall be installed in accordance 
with the approved details prior to the first use of the development and shall be retained 
as such thereafter. 

 
Reason: In the interest of highway safety in accordance with Policy T1 of the adopted 
Tameside Unitary Development Plan and the National Planning Policy Framework. 

 
9) No development shall commence until such time as a Construction Environment 

Management Plan has been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning 
Authority.  This shall include details of: 
 
• Wheel wash facilities for construction vehicles; 
• Arrangements for temporary construction access; 
• Contractor and construction worker car parking; 
• Turning facilities during the remediation and construction phases; 
• Details of on-site storage facilities; and 
• Details of how construction traffic will be segregated from the existing college 

pedestrian/traffic. 
 

The development shall be carried out in accordance with the approved Construction 
Environmental Management Plan. 
 
Reason: In the interest of highway safety, in accordance with UDP Policy T1: Highway 
Improvement and Traffic Management. 

 
10) No development, other than site clearance and site compound set up, shall commence 

until a condition survey (including structural integrity) of the highways to be used by 
construction traffic has been submitted to and approved in writing by the LPA.  The 
methodology of the survey shall be approved in writing by the LPA and shall assess 
the existing state of the highway.  On completion of the development a second condition 
survey shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the LPA which shall identify 
defects attributable to the traffic ensuing from the development.  Any necessary 
remedial works shall be completed at the developer’s expense in accordance with a 
scheme, including timescales, to be submitted to and approved in writing by the LPA. 

 
Reason: In the interest of highway safety in accordance with Policy T1 of the adopted 
Tameside Unitary Development Plan and the National Planning Policy Framework. 

 

Page 52



11) Prior to the first occupation of the development hereby approved, a timetable and 
schedule for implementation of the submitted Travel Plan shall be submitted to and 
approved in writing by the LPA.  The Travel Plan shall thereafter be implemented in 
accordance within the approved details. 

 
Reason: In the interest of promoting use of public transport and reducing environmental 
impact, in accordance with UDP Policies T1: Highway Improvement and Traffic 
Management and T11 Travel Plans. 

 
12) There shall be no demolition, vegetation clearance works, or other works that may 

affect nesting birds on the development or off-site habitat creation areas, between 
March and August inclusive, unless the absence of nesting birds has been confirmed 
by further surveys or inspections submitted to and approved in writing by the LPA. 

 
Reason: In the interest of protected species conservation in accordance with Policy N7 
of the adopted Tameside Unitary Development Plan and the National Planning Policy 
Framework. 

 
13) Prior to any above ground works commencing on the site, details of biodiversity 

enhancement measures to be installed as part of the development hereby approved 
shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the LPA.  The details shall include a 
specification of the installations and scaled plans showing their location within the 
development.  The approved details shall be installed prior to the first use of the 
development, and shall be retained as such thereafter. 

 
Reason: In the interest of biodiversity enhancement in accordance with Policy N3 of 
the adopted Tameside Unitary Development Plan and the National Planning Policy 
Framework. 
 

14) Prior to their first installation, any fixed plant and machinery shall be acoustically 
treated/designed in accordance with a scheme which shall be submitted to and 
approved in writing by the LPA.  Any plant and machinery shall be implemented in 
accordance with the approved scheme and retained as such thereafter. 

 
Reason: In the interest of residential amenity in accordance with Policy H10 of the 
adopted Tameside Unitary Development Plan and the National Planning Policy 
Framework. 

 
15) During demolition/construction no work (including vehicle and plant movements, 

deliveries, loading and unloading) shall take place outside the hours of 07:30 and 18:00 
Mondays to Fridays, and 08:00 and 13:00 Saturdays.  No work shall take place on 
Sundays and Bank Holidays. 

 
Reason: In the interest of residential amenity in accordance with Policy H10 of the 
adopted Tameside Unitary Development Plan and the National Planning Policy 
Framework. 

 
16) The development hereby approved shall be carried out in accordance with the 

recommendations of Section 6.2 of the submitted Preliminary Ecological Appraisal 
(undertaken by Deltasimons, ref: 21-18236.02, dated September 2022). 

 
Reason: In the interest of protected species conservation in accordance with Policy N7 
of the adopted Tameside Unitary Development Plan and the National Planning Policy 
Framework. 

 
17) Within six months of the commencement of the development hereby approved, a hard 

and soft landscaping scheme shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the LPA. 

Page 53



The approved hard landscaping details shall be implemented prior to the first 
occupation of the building. 

 
All planting, seeding or turfing comprised in the approved details of landscaping shall 
be carried out in the first planting and seeding seasons following the occupation of the 
building or the completion of the development, whichever is the sooner; and any trees 
or plants which die within a period of five years from the completion of the development, 
are removed, or become seriously damaged or diseased shall be replaced in the next 
planting season with others of similar size and species. 
 
Reason: In the interests of the visual amenities of the locality, in accordance with 
polices H10: Detailed Design of Housing Developments, OL10: Landscape Quality and 
Character and C1: Townscape and Urban Form. 

Page 54



10m0

1:1250

20m

N

PLANNING

Studios at:

Unit 1.3 Waulk Mill
51 Bengal St
MANCHESTER
M4 6LN
t : 0161 236 5655

Clarendon House
Victoria Avenue 
HARROGATE
HG1 1JD
t : 01423 709 807

Y Neuadd Lwyd
Dolwyddelan
CONWY
LL25 0SJ
t: 07772819425

24 Greville Street 
Clerkenwell
LONDON
EC1N 8SS
t : 0203 036 0691

SEVENARCHITECTURE.CO.UK

HARROGATE

@ A3

DRAWING NO:

PROJECT

DRAWING TITLE:

PROJECT TITLE:

ORIGIN ZONE LEVEL TYPE ROLE NO.# REVISION

SUITABILITY
DESCRIPTION

REVISION
DESCRIPTION

PROJECT NO:

CLIENT:

DRAWING SCALE:

KEY PLAN (NTS):

REV: DESCRIPTION: DATE: DRAWN: CHECK:

1.

2.

3.
4.

5.

COPYRIGHT RESERVED: 
The Contractor shall verify and be responsible for all dimensions. DO NOT scale the 
drawing - any errors or omissions shall be reported to Seven Architecture without delay. 
The Copyrights to all designs and drawings are the property of Seven Architecture. 
Reproduction or use for any purpose other than that authorised by Seven Architecture is 
forbidden. 

GENERAL NOTES: 
For the purposes  of construction the drawing must not be scaled and only written 
or calculated dimensions 
Any queries or doubts, drawing error or divergences should be referred to the 
originator. 
All dimensions to be checked on site. 
All architectural drawings are to be read in conjunction with the relevant 
architectural specifications and      technical reference sheets (T-Sheets). 
All the details and setting-out drawings to be read in conjunction with the relevant 
consultants and subcontractor drawings. 

(S2) Suitable For Information

1:12501:1250

P01

Tameside College

Tameside FECTF

Site Location Plan (Project B)

SEVTAM ZZ ZZ DR A 01011

20710

P01 Planning Submission 13/12/2022 RD SP

P
age 55



T
his page is intentionally left blank



E

SD

5155

ST
UM
P

ST
UM
P

CL
 12
2.5
7

GA
S

DU
CT

CL
 12
2.9
1

CA
TV

HA
TC
HE
D

HA
TC
HE
D

HA
TC
HE
D

CL
 12
1.2
3

FH

SP
IRA
L S
TA
IRC
AS
E

DU
CT
S

sin
k

wc

wheelchair
storage

sink

RAD

C
O
L

RAD

R
AD

C
O
L

TL
 1
22
.6
0

TL 123.11

TL
 1
23
.0
3

TL 123.23

TL
12
3.
58

TL
 1
24
.1
4

C
O
L

RAD

TL
 1
23
.0
8

TL
 1
23
.1
6

RAD

RAD

R
AD

R
AD

C
O
L

C
O
L

RAD

TOW 123.08

RAD

RAD

TOW 123.14

R
AD

C
O
L

R
AD

C
O
L

C
O
L

C
O
L

BEAUFORT ROAD

STAM
FOR
D ST
REE
T E (
A635
)

(1)
NEWTON 

MOTORVEHICLE

(2)
NEWTON 

ELECTRICAL/ JOINERY

(7)
CONSTRUCTION 

SKILLS

(12)
PLUMBING

(13)
JOINERY K38

(11)
BRICKWORK

(10)
RYECROFT

(9)
SPORTS HALL

(8)
ATC BUILDING

(5)
VICTORIA

(6)
DOVESTONES

(4)
WATERLOO

(3)
MEDLOCK

Z3

PROJECT A

PROJECT B

Z1
Z2

Planning boundary 

Deed boundary (CSC)

Ownership Boundary

SITE PLAN BOUNDARY KEY

10m0

1:500

25m

N

PLANNING

Studios at :

Unit 1.3 Waulk Mill
51 Bengal St
MANCHESTER
M4 6LN
t : 0161 236 5655

Clarendon House
Victoria Avenue 
HARROGATE
HG1 1JD
t : 01423 709 807

Y Neuadd Lwyd
Dolwyddelan
CONWY
LL25 0SJ
t: 07772819425

@ A1

SEVENARCHITECTURE.CO.UK

HARROGATE

DRAWING NO:
PROJECT

DRAWING TITLE:

PROJECT TITLE:

ORIGIN ZONE LEVEL TYPE ROLE NO.# REVISION

SUITABILITY
DESCRIPTION

REVISION
DESCRIPTION

PROJECT NO:

CLIENT:

KEY PLAN (NTS):

DRAWING SCALE:

REV: DESCRIPTION: DRAWN: CHECK:DATE:

1.

2.

3.
4.

5.

COPYRIGHT RESERVED:  
The Contractor shall verify and be responsible for all dimensions. DO NOT scale the 
drawing - any errors or omissions shall be reported to Seven Architecture without delay. 
The Copyrights to all designs and drawings are the property of Seven Architecture. 
Reproduction or use for any purpose other than that authorised by Seven Architecture is 
forbidden. 

GENERAL NOTES: 
For the purposes  of construction the drawing must not be scaled and only written or 
calculated dimensions 
Any queries or doubts, drawing error or divergences should be referred to the 
originator. 
All dimensions to be checked on site. 
All architectural drawings are to be read in conjunction with the relevant 
architectural specifications and      technical reference sheets (T-Sheets). 
All the details and setting-out drawings to be read in conjunction with the relevant 
consultants and subcontractor drawings. 

(S2) Suitable For Information

1:500

P01

Tameside College

Tameside FECTF

Existing Ground Floor Masterplan
(Colour)

SEVTAM ZZ 00 DR A 01000

20710

 1 : 500
Existing Ground Floor Masterplan (Colour)

P01 Planning Submission 13/12/2022 RD SP

P
age 57



T
his page is intentionally left blank



E

E

UP

HA
TC
HE
D

HA
TC
HE
D

HA
TC
HE
D

SP
IRA
L S
TA
IRC
AS
E

sin
k

wc

wheelchair
storage

sink

BEAUFORT ROAD

STAM
FOR
D ST
REE
T E (
A635
)

TEMPORARY GREEN SPACE REGRADED

(7)
CONSTRUCTION 

SKILLS

(10)
RYECROFT

(9)
SPORTS HALL

(8)
ATC BUILDING

(5)
VICTORIA

(6)
DOVESTONES

(4)
WATERLOO

(3)
MEDLOCK

Planning boundary 

Deed boundary (CSC)

Ownership Boundary

SITE PLAN BOUNDARY KEY

Z3

PROJECT A

PROJECT B

Z1
Z2

10m0

1:500

25m

N

PLANNING

Studios at :

Unit 1.3 Waulk Mill
51 Bengal St
MANCHESTER
M4 6LN
t : 0161 236 5655

Clarendon House
Victoria Avenue 
HARROGATE
HG1 1JD
t : 01423 709 807

Y Neuadd Lwyd
Dolwyddelan
CONWY
LL25 0SJ
t: 07772819425

@ A1

SEVENARCHITECTURE.CO.UK

HARROGATE

DRAWING NO:
PROJECT

DRAWING TITLE:

PROJECT TITLE:

ORIGIN ZONE LEVEL TYPE ROLE NO.# REVISION

SUITABILITY
DESCRIPTION

REVISION
DESCRIPTION

PROJECT NO:

CLIENT:

KEY PLAN (NTS):

DRAWING SCALE:

REV: DESCRIPTION: DRAWN: CHECK:DATE:

1.

2.

3.
4.

5.

COPYRIGHT RESERVED:  
The Contractor shall verify and be responsible for all dimensions. DO NOT scale the 
drawing - any errors or omissions shall be reported to Seven Architecture without delay. 
The Copyrights to all designs and drawings are the property of Seven Architecture. 
Reproduction or use for any purpose other than that authorised by Seven Architecture is 
forbidden. 

GENERAL NOTES: 
For the purposes  of construction the drawing must not be scaled and only written or 
calculated dimensions 
Any queries or doubts, drawing error or divergences should be referred to the 
originator. 
All dimensions to be checked on site. 
All architectural drawings are to be read in conjunction with the relevant 
architectural specifications and      technical reference sheets (T-Sheets). 
All the details and setting-out drawings to be read in conjunction with the relevant 
consultants and subcontractor drawings. 

(S2) Suitable For Information

1:500

P01

Tameside College

Tameside FECTF

Proposed Ground Floor Masterplan
(Colour)

SEVTAM ZZ 00 DR A 01050

20710

 1 : 500
Proposed Ground Floor Masterplan

P01 Planning Submission 13/12/2022 RD SP

P
age 59



T
his page is intentionally left blank



E

SD

5155

ST
UM
P

ST
UM
P

CL
 12
2.5
7

GA
S

DU
CT

CL
 12
2.9
1

CA
TV

HA
TC
HE
D

HA
TC
HE
D

HA
TC
HE
D

CL
 12
1.2
3

FH

SP
IRA
L S
TA
IRC
AS
E

DU
CT
S

sin
k

wc

wheelchair
storage

sink

RAD

C
O
L

RAD

R
AD

C
O
L

TL
 1
22
.6
0

TL 123.11

TL
 1
23
.0
3

TL 123.23

TL
12
3.
58

TL
 1
24
.1
4

C
O
L

RAD

TL
 1
23
.0
8

TL
 1
23
.1
6

RAD

RAD

R
AD

R
AD

C
O
L

C
O
L

RAD

TOW 123.08

RAD

RAD

TOW 123.14

R
AD

C
O
L

R
AD

C
O
L

C
O
L

C
O
L

5m0

1:200

10m

N

PLANNING

Studios at :

Unit 1.3 Waulk Mill
51 Bengal St
MANCHESTER
M4 6LN
t : 0161 236 5655

Clarendon House
Victoria Avenue 
HARROGATE
HG1 1JD
t : 01423 709 807

Y Neuadd Lwyd
Dolwyddelan
CONWY
LL25 0SJ
t: 07772819425

24 Greville Street 
Clerkenwell
LONDON
EC1N 8SS
t : 0203 036 0691

@ A1

SEVENARCHITECTURE.CO.UK

HARROGATE

DRAWING NO:
PROJECT

DRAWING TITLE:

PROJECT TITLE:

ORIGIN ZONE LEVEL TYPE ROLE NO.# REVISION

SUITABILITY
DESCRIPTION

REVISION
DESCRIPTION

PROJECT NO:

CLIENT:

KEY PLAN (NTS):

DRAWING SCALE:

REV: DESCRIPTION: DRAWN: CHECK:DATE:

1.

2.

3.
4.

5.

COPYRIGHT RESERVED:  
The Contractor shall verify and be responsible for all dimensions. DO NOT scale the 
drawing - any errors or omissions shall be reported to Seven Architecture without delay. 
The Copyrights to all designs and drawings are the property of Seven Architecture. 
Reproduction or use for any purpose other than that authorised by Seven Architecture is 
forbidden. 

GENERAL NOTES: 
For the purposes  of construction the drawing must not be scaled and only written or 
calculated dimensions 
Any queries or doubts, drawing error or divergences should be referred to the 
originator. 
All dimensions to be checked on site. 
All architectural drawings are to be read in conjunction with the relevant 
architectural specifications and      technical reference sheets (T-Sheets). 
All the details and setting-out drawings to be read in conjunction with the relevant 
consultants and subcontractor drawings. 

(S5) Suitable for Approval

1:200

P01

Tameside College

Tameside FECTF

MV - Level 00 - Existing Ground Floor
Plan

SEVTAM Z3 GF DR A 02000

20710

Existing Ground Floor Plan

P01 Planning submission 13/12/2022 RD SP

P
age 61



T
his page is intentionally left blank



St
ee
l w
or
kb
en
ch

18
00
 x 
90
0

w/
4n
o. 
vic
es

St
ee
l w
or
kb
en
ch

18
00
 x 
90
0

w/
4n
o. 
vic
es

St
ee
l w
or
kb
en
ch

18
00
 x 
90
0

w/
4n
o. 
vic
es

St
ee
l w
or
kb
en
ch

18
00
 x 
90
0

w/
4n
o. 
vic
es

Steel workbench
1800 x 900
w/4no. vices

Steel workbench
1800 x 900
w/4no. vices

Steel workbench
1800 x 900
w/4no. vices

Engine
Stand

E

Gu
illo
tin
e

MIG/TIG
Welder

MIG/TIG
Welder

MIG/TIG
Welder

MIG/TIG
Welder

MIG/TIG
Welder

MIG/TIG
Welder

MIG/TIG
Welder

MIG/TIG
Welder

Spray
Booth

Spray
Booth

Grinder
w/stand

Folding
Press

Engine
Stand

Engine
Stand

Engine
Stand

Engine
Stand

Engine
Stand

Engine
Stand

Engine
Stand

Engine
Stand

Engine
Stand

Engine
Crane

Engine
Crane St

ee
l w
or
kb
en
ch

18
00
 x 
90
0

w/
4n
o. 
vic
es

St
ee
l w
or
kb
en
ch

18
00
 x 
90
0

w/
4n
o. 
vic
es

Engine
Stand

110kW
9.2m³/hr

Control Panel

1
03040

7 9531

B

C

A

642 8 10 11 1312

CLEAR CIRCULATION

4-POST RAMP 
OVER RECESSED SLAB

TW
O-
PO
ST
 LI
FT

TW
O-
PO
ST
 LI
FT

STUDENT/PUBLIC ENTRANCE

ro
om
  d
at
a

45.5 m²
Welding Room

Occ:16 students (1 group); 16 vices; 4
benches

ro
om
  d
at
a

97.5 m²
Zone 3: Body Workshop

Occ:20; 2 cars; 1no. 2-post lift

ro
om
  d
at
a

19.4 m²
Mixing Room

ro
om
  d
at
a

364.2 m²
Zone 2: Mechanical Workshop

Occ:60; 14 cars; 6no. 2-post lifts

ro
om
  d
at
a

26.1 m²
Spraybooth Oven

Occ:1 car

Spraybooth plant mounted on roof - extract 
high level

WASH FACILITIES

Vehicular access through-route 

External workshop space / 
car storage

External workshop space / 
car storage

Sm
ar
t te
ac
hin
g w
all

RE-ALIGNMENT JIG

BRAKE TESTING 
RECESSED IN SLAB

ADAS RIG

SMART TEACHING WALL

MOBILE SMART SCREEN

TRAINING RIG TRAINING RIG

SM
AR
T 
TE
AC
HI
NG
 W
AL
L

Folding partition between Zone 3 & Zone 2 Folding partition between Zone 
2 & Zone 1

Student tool storage within office 
(lockable cages)

ro
om
  d
at
a

1.9 m²
Unisex WC

ro
om
  d
at
a

1.9 m²
Unisex WC

ro
om
  d
at
a

1.9 m²
Unisex WC

ro
om
  d
at
a

3.3 m²
AWC

03060

A

03060 D

03060B

03060

C

Lockers

ro
om
  d
at
a

40.9 m²
Engine Room

Occ:1 group; 6 benches; 18 vices

TW
O-P
OS
T L
IFT

TW
O-P
OS
T L
IFT

SM
AR
T 
TE
AC
HI
NG
 W
AL
L

WASH FACILITIES

ro
om
  d
at
a

20.7 m²
Staff/Store

Occ:2

ro
om
  d
at
a

75.3 m²
Zone 2: MOT Bay

Occ:1 group; 1no. 4-post lift

WRITING BENCH

WRITING BENCH WRITING BENCH

Junair Car booth spray oven
series 1

External canopy

ro
om
  d
at
a

21.0 m²
Entrance Lobby

Level 2 EV charger 

Level 2 EV chargers - 
number and exact 
location TBC with 
client

External canopy

SMART TEACHING WALL

TW
O-
PO
ST
 LI
FT

ro
om
  d
at
a

1.5 m²
Unisex WC

2
03040

TW
O-P
OS
T L
IFT

TW
O-P
OS
T L
IFT

TWO-POST LIFT

TWO-POST LIFT

Cold water tank/booster

Cleaner's sink

Electrical main switch panel and 
comms cabinet. Server space if 
required

Wicket door

Wicket door

Wicket door

Wicket door

Wicket door
A-A
03006

A-A
03006

PLANT MEZZANINE 
OVERHEAD

Compressor unit and tank

Student tool storage within office 
(lockable cages)

ro
om
  d
at
a

6.1 m²
Plant/ Clnrs Cpbd

ro
om
  d
at
a

1.9 m²
Unisex WC

TOOL STORE

Pa
int
 st
or
ag
e

TWO-POST LIFT

TWO-POST LIFT

WHEEL BALANCER
TYRE FITTING

TEACHING WALL

MOBILE SMART SCREEN

PAINT WASH

4
03041

3
03041

BRISE SOILEIL BRISE SOILEIL

BR
IS
E 
SO
ILE
IL

BRISE SOILEIL
External covered change/ breakout space

ro
om
  d
at
a

70.8 m²
Zone 4: Paint Workshop

Occ:20; 3 cars

ro
om
  d
at
a

116.7 m²
Zone 1: Electrical Vehicle Workshop

Occ:18; 4 cars; 2no.2-post lifts

122350

ro
om
  d
at
a

14.7 m²
External Plant Enclosure

PASS DOOR

HA
ND
 W
AS
H

HAND WASH

PASS DOOR

Pillar Drill

1
03007

1
03007

D

A

C

B

1m0

1:100

5m2m

N

PLANNING

Studios at :

Unit 1.3 Waulk Mill
51 Bengal St
MANCHESTER
M4 6LN
t : 0161 236 5655

Clarendon House
Victoria Avenue 
HARROGATE
HG1 1JD
t : 01423 709 807

Y Neuadd Lwyd
Dolwyddelan
CONWY
LL25 0SJ
t: 07772819425

24 Greville Street 
Clerkenwell
LONDON
EC1N 8SS
t : 0203 036 0691

@ A1

SEVENARCHITECTURE.CO.UK

HARROGATE

DRAWING NO:
PROJECT

DRAWING TITLE:

PROJECT TITLE:

ORIGIN ZONE LEVEL TYPE ROLE NO.# REVISION

SUITABILITY
DESCRIPTION

REVISION
DESCRIPTION

PROJECT NO:

CLIENT:

KEY PLAN (NTS):

DRAWING SCALE:

REV: DESCRIPTION: DRAWN: CHECK:DATE:

1.

2.

3.
4.

5.

COPYRIGHT RESERVED:  
The Contractor shall verify and be responsible for all dimensions. DO NOT scale the 
drawing - any errors or omissions shall be reported to Seven Architecture without delay. 
The Copyrights to all designs and drawings are the property of Seven Architecture. 
Reproduction or use for any purpose other than that authorised by Seven Architecture is 
forbidden. 

GENERAL NOTES: 
For the purposes  of construction the drawing must not be scaled and only written or 
calculated dimensions 
Any queries or doubts, drawing error or divergences should be referred to the 
originator. 
All dimensions to be checked on site. 
All architectural drawings are to be read in conjunction with the relevant 
architectural specifications and      technical reference sheets (T-Sheets). 
All the details and setting-out drawings to be read in conjunction with the relevant 
consultants and subcontractor drawings. 

(S5) Suitable for Approval

1:100

P01

Tameside College

Tameside FECTF

MV - Level 00 - Proposed Ground Floor
Plan

SEVTAM Z3 00 DR A 02020

20710

Level 00 - Proposed Ground Floor Plan

P01 Planning submission 13/12/2022 RD SP

P
age 63



T
his page is intentionally left blank



17
16
15
14
13
12
11
10
9
8
7
6
5
4
3
2

1

9
8
7
6
5
4
3
2
1

18
17
16
15
14
13
12
11
10

1
03040

7 9531

B

C

A

642 8 10

11
1312

03060

A

03060 D

03060B

03060

C

2
03040

ro
om
  d
at
a

108.0 m²
Plant deck

ro
om
  d
at
a

66.9 m²
Plant deck

4
03041

3
03041

125770

BRISE SOILEIL BRISE SOILEIL

BR
IS
E 
SO
ILE
IL

BRISE SOILEIL

125580

D

A

C

B

1m0

1:100

5m2m

N

PLANNING

Studios at :

Unit 1.3 Waulk Mill
51 Bengal St
MANCHESTER
M4 6LN
t : 0161 236 5655

Clarendon House
Victoria Avenue 
HARROGATE
HG1 1JD
t : 01423 709 807

Y Neuadd Lwyd
Dolwyddelan
CONWY
LL25 0SJ
t: 07772819425

24 Greville Street 
Clerkenwell
LONDON
EC1N 8SS
t : 0203 036 0691

@ A1

SEVENARCHITECTURE.CO.UK

HARROGATE

DRAWING NO:
PROJECT

DRAWING TITLE:

PROJECT TITLE:

ORIGIN ZONE LEVEL TYPE ROLE NO.# REVISION

SUITABILITY
DESCRIPTION

REVISION
DESCRIPTION

PROJECT NO:

CLIENT:

KEY PLAN (NTS):

DRAWING SCALE:

REV: DESCRIPTION: DRAWN: CHECK:DATE:

1.

2.

3.
4.

5.

COPYRIGHT RESERVED:  
The Contractor shall verify and be responsible for all dimensions. DO NOT scale the 
drawing - any errors or omissions shall be reported to Seven Architecture without delay. 
The Copyrights to all designs and drawings are the property of Seven Architecture. 
Reproduction or use for any purpose other than that authorised by Seven Architecture is 
forbidden. 

GENERAL NOTES: 
For the purposes  of construction the drawing must not be scaled and only written or 
calculated dimensions 
Any queries or doubts, drawing error or divergences should be referred to the 
originator. 
All dimensions to be checked on site. 
All architectural drawings are to be read in conjunction with the relevant 
architectural specifications and      technical reference sheets (T-Sheets). 
All the details and setting-out drawings to be read in conjunction with the relevant 
consultants and subcontractor drawings. 

(S5) Suitable for Approval

1:100

P01

Tameside College

Tameside FECTF

MV - Level 01 - Proposed Mezzanine
Floor Plan

SEVTAM Z3 01 DR A 02021

20710

A- Plant Mezzanine

P01 Planning submission 13/12/2022 RD SP

P
age 65



T
his page is intentionally left blank



D

A

C

B

1
03040

7 9531

B

C

A

642 8 10 11 1312
03060

A

03060 D

03060B

03060

C

2
03040

4
03041

3
03041

130551

130550

130550

130550

130550

6.
00
°

6.
00
°

6.
00
°

6.
00
°

125400

125485 125485 125485

125485

RFL-01 RFL-01 RFL-01 RFL-01 RFL-01 RFL-01 RFL-01

RFS-01

RFS-04

RFS-04

RFS-04

RFS-04

RFS-03

RFS-02

RFL-01

RFL-01

1m0

1:100

5m2m

N

PLANNING

Studios at :

Unit 1.3 Waulk Mill
51 Bengal St
MANCHESTER
M4 6LN
t : 0161 236 5655

Clarendon House
Victoria Avenue 
HARROGATE
HG1 1JD
t : 01423 709 807

Y Neuadd Lwyd
Dolwyddelan
CONWY
LL25 0SJ
t: 07772819425

24 Greville Street 
Clerkenwell
LONDON
EC1N 8SS
t : 0203 036 0691

@ A1

SEVENARCHITECTURE.CO.UK

HARROGATE

DRAWING NO:
PROJECT

DRAWING TITLE:

PROJECT TITLE:

ORIGIN ZONE LEVEL TYPE ROLE NO.# REVISION

SUITABILITY
DESCRIPTION

REVISION
DESCRIPTION

PROJECT NO:

CLIENT:

KEY PLAN (NTS):

DRAWING SCALE:

REV: DESCRIPTION: DRAWN: CHECK:DATE:

1.

2.

3.
4.

5.

COPYRIGHT RESERVED:  
The Contractor shall verify and be responsible for all dimensions. DO NOT scale the 
drawing - any errors or omissions shall be reported to Seven Architecture without delay. 
The Copyrights to all designs and drawings are the property of Seven Architecture. 
Reproduction or use for any purpose other than that authorised by Seven Architecture is 
forbidden. 

GENERAL NOTES: 
For the purposes  of construction the drawing must not be scaled and only written or 
calculated dimensions 
Any queries or doubts, drawing error or divergences should be referred to the 
originator. 
All dimensions to be checked on site. 
All architectural drawings are to be read in conjunction with the relevant 
architectural specifications and      technical reference sheets (T-Sheets). 
All the details and setting-out drawings to be read in conjunction with the relevant 
consultants and subcontractor drawings. 

(S3) Suitable For Comment

1:100

P01

Tameside College

Tameside FECTF

MV - Level RF - Proposed Roof Plan

SEVTAM Z3 RF DR A 02022

20710

Level RF - Proposed Roof Plan

P01 Planning submission 13/12/2022 RD SP

P
age 67



T
his page is intentionally left blank



Ground Floor - Existing
122674

First Floor - Newton Estates
125583

NEWTON - ELECTRICAL & CARPENTRY NEWTON - MOTOR VEHICLE NEWTON - ESTATES

Ridge - Existing
128710

128710

Ground Floor - Existing
122674

NEWTON - ELECTRICAL & CARPENTRY

128470Ridge - Existing
128710

Ground Floor - Existing
122674

First Floor - Newton
128123

NEWTON - ELECTRICAL & CARPENTRYNEWTON - MOTOR VEHICLENEWTON - ESTATES

Ridge - Existing
128710 128710

Ground Floor - Existing
122674

First Floor - Newton
128123

First Floor - Newton Estates
125583

NEWTON - MOTOR VEHICLENEWTON - ESTATES

D

A

B

C

1m0

1:100

5m2m

N

PLANNING

Studios at :

Unit 1.3 Waulk Mill
51 Bengal St
MANCHESTER
M4 6LN
t : 0161 236 5655

Clarendon House
Victoria Avenue 
HARROGATE
HG1 1JD
t : 01423 709 807

Y Neuadd Lwyd
Dolwyddelan
CONWY
LL25 0SJ
t: 07772819425

24 Greville Street 
Clerkenwell
LONDON
EC1N 8SS
t : 0203 036 0691

@ A1

SEVENARCHITECTURE.CO.UK

HARROGATE

DRAWING NO:
PROJECT

DRAWING TITLE:

PROJECT TITLE:

ORIGIN ZONE LEVEL TYPE ROLE NO.# REVISION

SUITABILITY
DESCRIPTION

REVISION
DESCRIPTION

PROJECT NO:

CLIENT:

KEY PLAN (NTS):

DRAWING SCALE:

REV: DESCRIPTION: DRAWN: CHECK:DATE:

1.

2.

3.
4.

5.

COPYRIGHT RESERVED:  
The Contractor shall verify and be responsible for all dimensions. DO NOT scale the 
drawing - any errors or omissions shall be reported to Seven Architecture without delay. 
The Copyrights to all designs and drawings are the property of Seven Architecture. 
Reproduction or use for any purpose other than that authorised by Seven Architecture is 
forbidden. 

GENERAL NOTES: 
For the purposes  of construction the drawing must not be scaled and only written or 
calculated dimensions 
Any queries or doubts, drawing error or divergences should be referred to the 
originator. 
All dimensions to be checked on site. 
All architectural drawings are to be read in conjunction with the relevant 
architectural specifications and      technical reference sheets (T-Sheets). 
All the details and setting-out drawings to be read in conjunction with the relevant 
consultants and subcontractor drawings. 

(S5) Suitable for Approval

1:100

P01

Tameside College

Tameside FECTF

Existing Elevations

SEVTAM Z3 ZZ DR A 03010

20710

Existing North East Elevation A

Existing South East Elevation B

Existing South West Elevation C

Existing North West Elevation D

P01 Planning submission 13/12/2022 RD SP

P
age 69



T
his page is intentionally left blank



Ground Floor
122350

79 5 3 16 4 28101113 12

Top of Parapet
130650

1

4B

9

14

3

2

1 10

15

56

6 8

7 6

17

Ground Floor
122350

B CA

Top of Parapet
130650

1 3

2

13

8

5

6

15

17

BC A

913

4B 14

11 12 1 15

6

6

7 9531 642 8 10 11 1312

3

9

4A1614

D

A

C

B

1m0

1:100

5m2m

N

PLANNING

Studios at :

Unit 1.3 Waulk Mill
51 Bengal St
MANCHESTER
M4 6LN
t : 0161 236 5655

Clarendon House
Victoria Avenue 
HARROGATE
HG1 1JD
t : 01423 709 807

Y Neuadd Lwyd
Dolwyddelan
CONWY
LL25 0SJ
t: 07772819425

24 Greville Street 
Clerkenwell
LONDON
EC1N 8SS
t : 0203 036 0691

@ A1

SEVENARCHITECTURE.CO.UK

HARROGATE

DRAWING NO:
PROJECT

DRAWING TITLE:

PROJECT TITLE:

ORIGIN ZONE LEVEL TYPE ROLE NO.# REVISION

SUITABILITY
DESCRIPTION

REVISION
DESCRIPTION

PROJECT NO:

CLIENT:

KEY PLAN (NTS):

DRAWING SCALE:

REV: DESCRIPTION: DRAWN: CHECK:DATE:

1.

2.

3.
4.

5.

COPYRIGHT RESERVED:  
The Contractor shall verify and be responsible for all dimensions. DO NOT scale the 
drawing - any errors or omissions shall be reported to Seven Architecture without delay. 
The Copyrights to all designs and drawings are the property of Seven Architecture. 
Reproduction or use for any purpose other than that authorised by Seven Architecture is 
forbidden. 

GENERAL NOTES: 
For the purposes  of construction the drawing must not be scaled and only written or 
calculated dimensions 
Any queries or doubts, drawing error or divergences should be referred to the 
originator. 
All dimensions to be checked on site. 
All architectural drawings are to be read in conjunction with the relevant 
architectural specifications and      technical reference sheets (T-Sheets). 
All the details and setting-out drawings to be read in conjunction with the relevant 
consultants and subcontractor drawings. 

(S2) Suitable For Information

1:100

P01

Tameside College

Tameside FECTF

MV - Proposed GA Elevations

SEVTAM Z3 ZZ DR A 03060

20710

A - North East Elevation

D- North West Elevation B- South East Elevation

C- South West Elevation

Material Key

Number Description

1 Kalwall translucent facade 'slots' break up the facade- creating a
vertical rhythm of solid-void

2 Powder-coated half-round metal rainscreen cladding direct applied
over steel-faced composite panel (mineral wool core)- Dark grey
matt, exact colour TBC

3 Powder-coated Sinusoidal metal rainscreen cladding direct applied
over steel-faced composite panel (mineral wool core) forming
external wall and parapet- Light grey gloss, exact colour TBC

4A Powder coated curtain glazing (DGUs) - Colour TBC
4B Automotive Workshop 'shopfront'- Powder coated curtain glazing

(DGUs) - Colour TBC
5 Metal frame canopy with translucent polycarbonate and solid

trapezoidal metal sheet roof, primary steel PPC yellow/orange, exact
colour TBC

6 PPC aluminium string course, jamb flashings and upstand-
yellow/orange, exact colour TBC

7 Trapezoidal composite roof panels over portal frame with opening
rooflights

8 Aluminium sectional garage doors- glazed upper section, solid base
with wicket doors, vertical track application, frame colour TBC

9 Large format expressed illuminated signage, colour TBC
10 Powder-coated aluminium cappings, PPC grey- exact colour TBC
11 Brick boundary walls with stone copings
12 Fixed pre-cast/timber seating
13 PPC horizontal louvres, light grey to match upper cladding
14 PPC steel brise soleil over glazed areas (south and east elevations)
15 Louvred plant enclosure
16 Glazed automatic sliding main entrance door
17 Tarmac service yard/ external workshop zone

P01 Planning submission 13/12/2022 RD SP

P
age 71



T
his page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	3 Minutes
	RESOLVED

	4a 22/00818/FUL - Land at the end of Fern Lodge Drive, Ashton-under-Lyne
	Location Plan
	Sheets and Views
	Location Plan


	Site Layout
	Sheets and Views
	Site Layout


	House Type B
	Sheets and Views
	Type B


	House Type D
	Sheets and Views
	Type D


	House Type E
	Sheets and Views
	Type E


	Historic Map Dated 1922
	Fern Lodge Drive Photographs

	4b 22/01208/FUL - Tameside College of Technology, Beaufort Road, Ashton-under-Lyne
	Location Plan
	Existing Site Plan
	Proposed Site Plan
	Existing Ground Floor Plan
	Proposed Ground Floor Plan
	Proposed Mezzanine Floor Plan
	Proposed Roof Plan
	Existing Elevations
	Proposed Elevations


